10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE-POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052

JANUARY 2026 AGENDA PACKET CONTENTS

. Agenda for the January 28, 2026, Regular Commission Meeting

Draft Minutes of the December 19, 2025, Regular Commission Meeting

Memo from the Finance Manager on the Series 2026 Front Foot Assessment
Revenue Bond Reimbursement Resolution

2026 Front Foot Assessment Bond Reimbursement Resolution
Huntington Bank Term Sheet

Memo from the Finance Manager on the 911 Lease Renewal Analysis
PSD Procurement Policy Presentation

Amended and Restated Purchasing and Procurement Policy
FY’26 2™ Quarter Management Report

State of SC FY’27 Executive Budget

GM Monthly Report

SCDOT Update Presentation

HHI Chamber of Commerce Environmental Outreach Materials
Environmental Affairs Committee Presentation

2025 WaterSense Excellence Award Application

Charts, Graphs and Water Quality Report






HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE — POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052
www.hhpsd.com

AGENDA
Hilton Head Public Service District Commission
1 p.m.
January 28, 2026
PSD Community Room
21 Oak Park Drive, Hilton Head Island, SC 29926
I.  Call to Order & Freedom of Information Act Announcement
II.  Pledge of Allegiance
III.  Roll Call of Commissioners
IV.  Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

V.  Adoption of Draft Minutes of December 19, 2025, Regular Meeting

VI.  Approval and Adoption of Series Resolution Authorizing the Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series
2026 (Front-foot Assessment) (Action)

VII.  Approval of Lender and Terms for Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2026 (Front-foot
Assessment) (Action)

VIII. 911 Center Lease Renewal (Action)
IX.  PSD Purchasing Policy Review
X.  FY ’26 2" Quarter Management Report
XI.  General Manager’s Monthly Report
XII.  Executive Session:

A. Under S.C. Code 30-4-70 (a) (2) (“Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual
arrangements. ..”) — Easement Valuation; Advanced Metering Infrastructure

XIII.  Possible Action by Commission Concerning Matters Discussed in Executive Session

XIV.  Adjournment

*Public Comment will be taken before Commission vote on any action item.



Draft Minutes



HILTON HEAD NO.1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE — POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052

MINUTES
COMMISSION MEETING
DECEMBER 19, 2025

I. The meeting was called to order by Chairman Frank Turano at 11:00 a.m.
II. Those in attendance were:

Mr. Frank Turano Chair

Mr. Jerry Cutrer Vice Chair

Mrs. Patti Soltys Secretary

Mr. Andy Paterno Commissioner

Mr. Michael Marks Commissioner

Present by request:

Mr. Pete Nardi General Manager

Ms. Amy Graybill Finance Manager

Mrs. Connie Whitehead Commission Recording Secretary
Visitors

None

III.  Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Frank Turano.

IV.  Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
None

V. Adoption of Draft Minutes of November 19, 2025, Commission Meeting
Action

e Mr. Paterno moved to adopt the minutes of the November 19, 2025, as presented.
Mr. Marks seconded. The motion passed unanimously.



VL

VIIL.

VIIL

Screw Pumps Replacement Project Notice of Award and Construction Contract
Authorization

Key Discussion Points

e Staff presented for board consideration a Notice of Award and Construction
Contract for the Screw Pumps Replacement Project in the PSD’s Recycled Water
Plant.

e Staff recommends the Board authorize execution of both documents.

Action

e Mor. Cutrer moved to authorize staff to execute the Notice of Award and
Construction Contract in the amount of $4.37 million from WGK Construction for
the Screw Pumps Replacement Project. Mr. Paterno seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

Access Easement Agreement with HHI Northpoint, LLC

Key Discussion Points

e The developer of the Town of Hilton Head Island’s workforce housing project at
Northpoint has requested the PSD execute an Access Easement Agreement as
they begin development of the property.

e The PSD has held an access easement on the property for decades, as it is the site
of the Post Office Ground Storage Tank. The developer is requesting the Release
and Termination of Agreement Concerning Utilities, Drainage and Easements to
extinguish outdated language that included a predecessor utility of the PSD,
Hilton Head Plantation Utilities, which the PSD acquired in the 1990s.

e Staff recommends the Board authorize staff to execute the Release and
Termination of Agreement Concerning Utilities, Drainage and Easements and the
Access Easement Agreement. Both have been reviewed and recommended by
outside counsel.

Action

e Mrs. Soltys moved that the Board authorize staff to execute the Release and
Termination of Agreement Concerning Utilities, Drainage and Easements and the
Access Easement Agreement. Mr. Cutrer seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

General Manager’s Monthly Report

Key Discussion Points

e Mr. Nardi presented the General Manager’s Monthly Report. A copy is included
in the agenda packet.

e Mr. Nardi provided copies of a PSD debt overview presentation from First Tryon
Advisors, and reports from S&P Global and Fitch Ratings on U.S. water utilities
2026 outlook.



IX.

Adoption of 2026 Commission Officers

Key Discussion Points
e At the November meeting, the current slate of Commission officers were
nominated to continue in their current seats.

Action
e Mr. Marks voted to elect the current slate of Commission officers to continue in
their current seats. Mr. Cutrer seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Adjournment
Action

e Mr. Cutrer moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Paterno seconded. The motion
passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 11:50 a.m.



Front Foot Assessment.
Revenue Bond




HiltonHeadP/SB
Crpsaniaii )

21 Oak Park Drive
PO Box 21264 Yl
Hilton Head Island, SC 29925
www.hhpsd.com

To: Commissioners
Pete Nardi, General Manager

From: Amy Graybill, Finance Manager
Subject: Series 2026 Front Foot Assessment Revenue Bond - Reimbursement Resolution
Date: January 28, 2026

Attached is a resolution prepared by the District’s Bond Counsel for the Commission to review, discuss and
adopt at the January 28, 2026, Board Meeting.

Background

Under state law, and as an accommodation to certain new customers, the District provides an option to
finance the cost of connecting to the District’s water and sewer system over a period not exceeding 20 years
on their annual Beaufort County tax bill. These installations (and the costs of the same) are accumulated by
the District in batches and reimbursed by a revenue bond issuance every three years (timing to conform to
the reimbursement rules for tax-exempt bonds). Since our last front foot assessment debt issuance in 2023,
the District has connected approximately 53 water and sewer customers who have requested the District to
finance their costs to connect. Staff has been compiling all of the expenditures that the District has incurred
on these connections on a per parcel basis in order to determine the amount of funds that will be reimbursed
once this bond has been issued. The District has also been asked by the homeowners’ association of Old
House Creek subdivision to conduct a collector main project to serve 25 previously unserved parcels in that
neighborhood. All 25 parcels will be assessed a pro-rata portion of the entire collector main project cost.
They also had the option to finance their private connection cost to the collector main at project completion.
Five (5) owners have requested this option to date and will be included in this debt issuance.

Discussion

The purpose of this resolution is to authorize the issuance of the Series 2026 Bond in an amount not
exceeding $750,000, the proceeds of which will be used to reimburse the District for these connections and
to pay for certain costs and expenses relating to Series 2026 Bond. The District sent an RFP to approximately
35 banks. The District only received one bid, from Huntington Bank, which is attached. A summary of the
estimated impact of the different options appears on the following page. These are estimates at this time as
the District will continue to accumulate connection costs through the final assessment roll date and the final
connection costs will impact the final effective rate to customers. The final debt payment schedule
amortization may also vary slightly to account for accrual days between the issuance and first payment date.

District staff recommends accepting the 10-year term which includes the lowest interest rate of 4.25%,
optional prepayment at 102% until June 1, 2031 and 100% afterwards. This provides the lowest effective rate
to customers. The District will need to fund approximately $28,000 per year from its operations in addition
to the annual estimated FFA collections for the 10-year life of the debt to accept this option. Then, afterward,
the annual FFA collections of around $67,000 will go to fund the District’s operations. The disadvantage to
the 10 year term is that the total estimated cash flows to the District are lower than the 20-year term mainly

due to charging the lower effective interest rate to customers.
1



10 Year 15 Year 20 Year

Estimated District Impact

Stated Interest Rate 4.25% 4.49% 4.68%
Estimated Effective Interest Rate to Customers 2.13% 3.25% 4.44%
Estimated Total Interest to be Paid Over Life of Debt $ 196,615.39 $ 309,082.95 $ 435,509.81
Estimated Annual Series 2026 Debt Service to be Paid Over Life of Debt $94,661.54 $70,605.53 $59,275.49

for 10 years  for 15 years  for 20 years

Estimated Annual FFA Collections from Customers $ 50,970.47 $ 56,593.84 $ 62,915.19
Estimated Annual Capacity Fee FFA Collections from Customers 15.868.61 17,619.33 19,587.35
Total Estimated Annual Collections for 20 Years $66,839.07 $74,213.17 $82,502.54
Estimated Annual (Shortage) Overage mainly related to term difference ($27,822.47) $3,607.64 $23,227.05

for 10 years  for 15 years  for 20 years

Total Estimated Cash Flows (Mainly Capacity Fees and Related Interest) $390,166.07  $425,180.54  $464,540.96
Estimated Customer Impact

Estimated Cost for an Old House Creek Customer with Collector Main Only $ 16,000.00 $ 16,000.00 $ 16,000.00
Estimated Annual FFA to be Collected from Customer Over 20 Years $ 991.17 $ 1,100.52 $ 1,223.44
Estimated Total Interest to be Paid by Customer Over 20 Years $ 3,82337 $ 6,01041 $ 8,468.90

After the issuance of the Series 2026 Bond, the interest cost on the Series 2026 bond will be added to the
overall connection costs and amortized by the customers through front-foot assessments paid over a 20-year
repayment period. District staff currently estimates that this will result in an effective interest rate of around
2.13% to the affected customers over the 20-year repayment period if the 10 year term is chosen. This is also
the rate that will be applied to the capacity fees owed by these customers; capacity fees are currently
estimated at $256,000. As previously noted, the District is continuing to accrue connection costs through the
date of the final assessment roll so the final effective interest rate to customers will not be determined until

the assessment roll is completed.

Attached is a financing schedule related to the issuance of the Series 2026 Bond. Pre-closing for the bond is
anticipated to occur at the February Commission meeting. After the issuance of the Series 2026 Bond, there
will be additional public procedural steps and approvals to finalize the process to impose the front-foot
assessments over the next few months as outlined in the attached schedule.

Action
1. Staff recommends that the Commission adopt the attached resolution prepared by the District’s Bond
Counsel providing for the issuance and sale of a waterworks and sewer system improvement revenue
bond of Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina, in the principal amount of not
exceeding $750,000, and other matters relating thereto.
2. Staff recommends that the Commission authorize staff to formally accept the 10 year term (Option 1)
from Huntington Bank.

Attachments:

2026 FFA Financing Schedule
2026 Series Bond Resolution
Huntington Bank Term Sheet



Combined Financing Schedule — Front Foot Assessments (“FFAs”) and 2026 Bond

Date Transaction Responsible Party
December Gather information related to persons who will be subject to | HH1
2025 assessments; deliver information to Bond Counsel
December Confirm bond amount; Submit RFP or negotiate purchase | BC
2025 with Bank
Wed. BC/HHI
1/28/2026 Adoption of Series Resolution authorizing the 2026 Bond
Wed.
2/25/2026 Pre-closing/File Transcript for 2026 Bond
Fri. BC/HH1/Purchaser
2/27/2026 Closing for 2026 Bond
Wed. Adoption of Imposition Resolution regarding imposition of | BC/HHI
3/25/2026 FFAs (“Imposition Resolution”)
Sun. Publication of the Imposition Resolution in The Island | BC
3/29/2026 Packet (7 days later becomes effective)
Sun.
4/5/2026 Imposition Resolution becomes effective
Wed. Send Posters (notice of the Assessments) to Register of | BC
4/8/2026 Deeds to be displayed in that office (w/in 30 days of
publication)
Wed. Adoption of Resolution authorizing the Assessment Roll | BC/HHI
4/29/2026 and authorizing the public hearing
Thurs. Assessment Roll made available for inspection at | HHI
4/30/2026 Commission’s offices
Tues. 1. Letters sent to affected property owners to provide | BC/HHI
5/5/2026 notice of assessment, objection and public hearing
Notice of Public Hearing sent to The Island Packet
Sun. 2. Notice of Public Hearing published in The Island | BC
5/10/2026 Packet (at least 10 days prior to date of hearing)
Sun. PO
5/24/2026 Deadline for objections to Assessments.
Wed. 1. Commission holds public hearing on Assessments | BC/HH1
5/27/2026 and Capacity Fees;
2. Adoption of Resolution approving the Assessment
Roll
3. Assessment Roll filed with Treasurer, Auditor and
ROD
Remove Posters
Fri. 4. Mail written notice to aggrieved property owners of | BC/HH1
5/29/2026 right to appeal assessment
Tues. PO/HH]I
6/2/2026 Appeal window closes

Key:
BC Bond Counsel HHI1 Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District
Purchaser Purchaser of 2026 Bond PO Property Owners/Assessed Owners

Commission actions at anticipated meeting dates are shown in bold italics.






A RESOLUTION

PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF A WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM
IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND OF HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT,
SOUTH CAROLINA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($750,000), AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

Dated: January 28, 2026



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(This table is not part of the 2026 Series Resolution and is for convenience of reference only.)

ARTICLE 1 = FINDINGS ‘OF FACT .ciicssumissssnisisniasssssssssassasacsnssnsssssssosssssississsois W |
Section 1.01  Recital of FINdings 0f FACE.......ccceivieiiiiiiiiciiictecceececeee ettt enene e ere e 1
Section 1.02 Determinations Required by the Master Bond Resolution.............cccceueeirieeeesesesieierierenns 2

ARTICLE II - DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION .....ccceeeeueeurcnssansersnessesssessssassasaessssessnsssesssssaenes 4
Section 2.01  DETINIHONS . ....cciiiirriietiieieieie ettt ese e seee st ese e st e et e s e saeta s ensesessebenseneetens 4
Section 2.02  Authority for this 2026 Series RESOIULION..........cccveiviiiiiiiiiiriieeienicee st csee et seens 5

ARTICLE III = USEFUL LIFE .iiciinsmsismssssanssmsmisissasiosisiisssiuisioississsssssesssssaesssnesissssnescaresesse 6
Section 3.01 Determination of the Useful Life of the System .........cccccviiiieirinieiineieiieseeeereeeeins 6

ARTICLE IV - AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF THE 2026 BOND......ccccccceetnenrenenneseensseeensenes 7
Section 4.01  Principal Amount; Designation of 2026 Bond; Maturity and Interest Payment Dates...... 7
Section 4.02  Purposes of the 2026 BONA ........c.cviriiiiiieiiiiciiiiesieeessiee et 7
Section 4.03  Date of Issue; Interest Rates; Maturity; Redemption.............ccoueueueeeeveieeeiereeieeceeseeienennns 7
Section 4.04  Authentication; Payment 0f 2026 BONd............ccccvivrivieeiiiinieeieceeine e eresnone s 7
Section 4.05 Denomination and Numbering of the 2026 Bond.............cccceeeeveevreinnieriienreeeecreesrenenens 8
Section 4.06  Establishment of 2026 Debt Service Fund...........ccccvveviieivicieiinriieneceeerecreeeeeeneevene e 8
Section 4.07 Debt Service Reserve FUnd.........cococoeveieiniiiiiecieicecteeesee e 8
Section 4.08 Appointment of Trustee, Paying Agent and RegiStrar .............oceevvveveevveresreeinsnsneeennans 8
Section 4.09  Form 0f 2026 BONA ......c.cciiiiriiiieiiieiieieiiiesieeetie ettt eas st s e b s b s tesesssbens 8

ARTICLE V CERTAIN DELEGATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS .......ccoceverrenrerneruesnessessesanssens 9
Section 5.01  Certain DeleGatiOnS........uceveciririrrereririsierereserreereessesessessssesesssssesesessesessssssessssssesesssseseses 9

ARTICLE VI - EXECUTION OF 2026 BOND; NO RECOURSE ......cccccernecseieneesseseesecsesssesessessasses 10
SeCtion 6.01  EXECULION ...ecviiiiiiieriietiitesictiiestectets et st ettt et e s s bebeseebebe b ebebessebessesseressabensessasas 10
Section 6.02  NO RECOUISE.....c.euiuiiiiiieiieiristeteerie ettt se et sn bt ssebeese s eteseeasasas 10

ARTICLE VII — SALE OF BOND......ccccciteuininniesensssssssssnssssssssssssessssasessssessessssssssnsesssssssessesssssssssssessssnsas 11
Section 701  SEle OFBONM. sosvesvwsssmmisionesusussssirmns ssansssssassssians 55 3374 655 5554550 62988 6108 bmoskonaransnrionssn 11
Section 7.02  ComPELItiVE SALE. .......ceiviiriiiirieirieieiree ettt s sseae et e b sssbesseaeseas 11
Section 7.03  Negotiated SAlE. ......ceveuiiieieieieieeeteeetecee ettt b ettt et nenes 11

ARTICLE VIII - APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS .......ccccoininiiiiicsisnnnessicnsssssesssessssssssssessassassessassens 12
Section 8.01  Use and Disposition of Bond Proceeds. ........ccouvueiiuiereieeiiiiriieerecieeseseesessee oo s 12

ARTICLE XI - COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF THE CODE ........cccceceevuereerurerenes 13
Section 9.01  TaX COVENANES........cuccoiirireieieieirisietereieteieseseres ettt ese s et st ese s ese s esesssssesesesesesesesnaes 13
Section 9.02  DiSCIOSUIE COVENANES......ccuiuirerrereririreriiiiereeserisseseeeisesissesessesssessessssessessssssessesessessssesses 14

ARTICLE X - FRONT-FOOT ASSESSMENTS; DEFERRED PAYMENT OF CERTAIN FEES.16
Section 10.01 Front-FOOt ASSESSIMENLS.........ccveeirieierieieierietietesreste e e ere st eseeteseess e esessessensensesessensenas 16
Section 10.02 Deferred Payment of Certain FEES ........ccvivriiiiiiniiriiiiiriiieiieiereiere et siess e 16

ARTICLE XI = MISCELLANEOUS i usisinsissassosissiosssessssisionisississvnisssssinisassssisisnssissaisssissssaonisssisossssoios 17
Section 11.01 SEVETADILILY ....c.ccecveriiiiieiieiiieieitet ettt v et s e e bbb et ebe b et ebesbebe st essebesseresseneas 17
Section 11.02 Table of Contents and Section Headings Not Controlling............ccccooeeevvrreeeeereisennnne. 17
Section 11.03 District Representative; Prior ACHON ......ccveverieiiiteeisierieereeeisieesee s et eeereeeresrenees 17
Section 11.04 Other DOCUMENLS .........vueiiiiiiririieieiiiieieritstsieseresere s esesessssess s esessssesesessssesesessssesesnas 17

EXHIBIT A — FORM OF 2026 BOND ...ccccosniisensncrisrnsaessnsssssssscssssssssssassssssssssssasssssssssssssnsnsssseassassasss A-1

EXHIBIT B — EORM OF REP ......cooomussnmsusnrsnenssassssassasnssassessssesssnsnsssssesssnsnsasssssssnsasssssnssssssossassansssnasss B-1

EXHIBIT C — FORM OF CUSTOMER AGREEMENT......ccccecesvnsinsunnnsnnsicnnssssassasssssnsnsnssnsnssassnses C-1



BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT COMMISSION
IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED:

ARTICLE I - FINDINGS OF FACT

Section 1.01 Recital of Findings of Fact

Incident to the adoption of this series resolution (this “2026 Series Resolution), and the issuance of
the waterworks and sewer system improvement revenue bond provided for herein, the Hilton Head No. 1
Public Service District Commission (the “Commission”), the governing body of Hilton Head No. 1 Public
Service District, South Carolina (the “District”), finds that the facts set forth in this Article exist and that the
following statements are in all respects true and correct:

1. The Commission has made general provision for the issuance of Waterworks and Sewer
System Revenue Bonds of the District by a resolution entitled “A RESOLUTION AMENDING AND
RESTATING A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF WATERWORKS
AND SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT,
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO,” dated March 16,
2004, as amended by a resolution entitled “A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR AND APPROVING
AMENDMENTS TO A RESOLUTION ENTITLED ‘A RESOLUTION AMENDING AND RESTATING
A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF WATERWORKS AND SEWER
SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT, SOUTH
CAROLINA, AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO’ WHICH AMENDMENTS EXTEND
THE TIME PERIOD WITHIN WHICH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MUST BE FURNISHED
AND MODIFYING THE REQUIREMENTS FOR DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS; AND OTHER
MATTERS RELATING THERETO” dated March 24, 2009, and further amended by a resolution entitled,
“A RESOLUTION FURTHER AMENDING A RESOLUTION ENTITLED ‘A RESOLUTION
AMENDING AND RESTATING A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC
SERVICE DISTRICT, SOUTH CAROLINA; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO’, AND
OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO” dated September 23, 2020 (collectively, the “Master Bond
Resolution”). Terms utilizing initial capitals and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed thereto in the Master Bond Resolution.

23 It is provided in and by the Master Bond Resolution that, upon adoption of a “Series
Resolution,” there may be issued one or more Series of Bonds for the purpose of, among other things: (1)
obtaining funds for expansions and improvements to the waterworks and sewer system of the District (the
“System”), including the recoupment of funds already so expended; (2) providing funds for the payment of
any bond anticipation notes; (3) refunding bonds or other obligations; (4) funding Debt Service Reserve
Funds, if any, in an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement and reimbursing amounts owed to any
providers of a surety bond, line of credit, insurance policy or letter of credit; and (5) paying the costs of
issuance of Bonds, including any credit enhancement therefor.

3. The District currently has Outstanding the following Series of Bonds, which are all secured
by a pledge of and a lien upon the Gross Revenues of the System:

(a) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $2,921,430 Waterworks and
Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2014B dated July 23, 2014;'

! Originally issued in the amount of $2,902,255, but final par amount was revised based upon final funds drawn.

1



(b) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $515,000 Waterworks and Sewer
System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2017A dated August 21, 2017;

(c) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $14,925,000 Waterworks and
Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2020B dated November 2, 2020; and

(d) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $235,000 Waterworks and Sewer
System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2023 dated February 24, 2023.

4. The District has recently undertaken certain improvements to the System consisting of the
installation of water distribution lines and sewage collection lines in and around Miller Road, Slim Loop Road,
Steelpan Road, Squire Pope Road, Wildhorse Road, Farmers Club, Dillon Road, Wiley Road, William Hilton
Parkway, Sunday Ford, Mitchellville Road, Juke Joint Lane, Marvin Lane, Azalea Street, Williams Drive,
Beach City Road, Jonesville Road, Gumtree Road, Janis Manor, Elizabeth Road, Marshland Road, Outlaw
Road, Spanish Wells Road, Old House Creek Drive and various other areas of the District (collectively, the
“Improvements”). The construction and installation of the Improvements was completed between April 2023
and July 2025. In accordance with the District’s Finance Policies (the “Finance Policies”), and specifically
FP4: Debt Policy (D), as amended and restated on July 26, 2023 and various declarations of intent to reimburse
as authorized by the Finance Policies, the Commission constructed the Improvements with funds on hand
with the intention of being reimbursed by the proceeds of a waterworks and sewer system improvement
revenue bond. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 4.01(A)(1) of the Master Bond Resolution and as further
recited in Section 1.01(2) above, the Commission is authorized to issue bonds to recoup funds previously
expended.

3. The District has determined to issue a commercial loan to be evidenced by the 2026 Bond
(as defined herein) in order to (1) reimburse the District for the costs of the completed Improvements, and (2)
pay the costs of issuance for the 2026 Bond.

6. It is anticipated by the District that a portion of the 2026 Bond shall be payable from Front-
foot Assessments levied on parcels of property which benefit from the Improvements.

7. By reason of the foregoing, the District has determined to adopt this 2026 Series Resolution
in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Master Bond Resolution in order to issue bonds for the
purposes described in Paragraph 5 above.

Section 1.02  Determinations Required by the Master Bond Resolution

The Commission hereby specifies and determines that:

1. the current period of usefulness of the System is as set forth in Article III hereof;
2. the Date of Issue of the 2026 Bond is identified in Section 4.01(b) hereof;
3. the authorized principal amount of the 2026 Bond, and the date of the final maturity

therefor is set forth at Section 4.01 hereof and the exact principal amount of the 2026 Bond shall be
determined by a District Representative at the closing of the 2026 Bond pursuant to Article V hereof;

4, the Bond Payment Dates, the Record Dates, and amounts of maturity of such 2026 Bond,
shall be determined by a District Representative at the closing of such 2026 Bond pursuant to Article V
hereof, provided, however, the 2026 Bond shall not mature later than 30 years from the Date of Issue;



5. the 2026 Bond is necessary to provide funds to be used and expended for purposes set forth
in Section 4.01(A) of the Master Bond Resolution, as such purposes are particularly described at Sections
1.01(5) and 4.02 hereof;

6. the title and designation of the 2026 Bond shall be as set forth at Section 4.01 hereof;

7. the 2026 Bond shall be sold in accordance with Article VII hereof in the manner determined
by a District Representative as authorized by Article V hereof;

8. the 2026 Bond shall bear interest at rates as determined by a District Representative
through the sale procedures of Article VII hereof, and the District, acting through a District Representative;

9. the 2026 Bond may be issued as either Serial Bonds or Term Bonds (with appropriate
mandatory redemption provisions), but not as Capital Appreciation Bonds, as determined by a District
Representative pursuant to Article V hereof;

10. the redemption prices and dates applicable to any Series of 2026 Bond shall be as
determined by a District Representative at the closing of such 2026 Bond pursuant to Article V hereof;

11. U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as the successor in interest to U.S. Bank
National Association (the “Trustee”), shall serve as Trustee, Paying Agent and Registrar for the 2026 Bond,;

12. the 2026 Bond shall be in the form as provided at Section 4.09 and Exhibit A hereof, with
such revisions as may be approved by a District Representative pursuant to Article V hereof upon the advice
of Bond Counsel, the execution thereof being conclusive evidence of such approval;

13. the 2026 Bond shall not be issued in book-entry form;

14. the proceeds of the 2026 Bond shall be applied as set forth at Section 8.01 hereof;

15. the 2026 Debt Service Fund shall be established under Section 4.06 hereof;

16. no 2026 Debt Service Reserve Fund is contemplated to be established in connection with
the 2026 Bond, and thus no 2026 Reserve Requirement is anticipated to be established; and

17, no construction fund shall be established for the 2026 Bond.

[End of Atrticle I]



ARTICLE II - DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

Section 2.01 Definitions

Except as provided below, all terms defined in Section 2.02 of the Master Bond Resolution shall have
the same meanings in this 2026 Series Resolution as such terms are prescribed to have in the Master Bond
Resolution.

As used in this 2026 Series Resolution, unless the context shall otherwise require the following terms
shall have the following respective meanings:

“2026 Bond” shall mean the Series of Bonds of the District authorized by this 2026 Series Resolution
and designated “Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina Waterworks and Sewer System
Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2026” and issued as one Series of Bonds on a tax-exempt basis.

“2026 Debt Service Fund’ shall mean the fund of that name established by this 2026 Series
Resolution pursuant to Section 7.03 of the Master Bond Resolution. If more than one Series of Bonds are
issued, the name of each fund shall include a letter designation to differentiate between each fund.

“Date of Issue” shall mean, with respect to the 2026 Bond, the date determined under Atrticle V in
accordance with Section 4.03 hereof.

“District Representative” shall mean the General Manager and/or the Finance Manager, acting
together or individually.

“Finance Manager” shall mean the Finance Manager of the District.
“General Manager” shall mean the General Manager of the District.

“Governmental Unif’ means a state or local governmental unit within the meaning of Section 141(b)
of the Code.

“Improvements” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 1.01(4) of this 2026 Series
Resolution.

“Master Bond Resolution” shall mean that resolution adopted on March 16, 2004, as amended on
March 24, 2009, and September 23, 2020.

“Nongovernmental Person” means any Person other than a Governmental Unit.

“Person” shall mean firms, associations, partnerships (including limited partnerships), trusts,
corporations, or other legal entities, including public bodies, as well as natural persons.

“Taxable Bonds” has the meaning given such term in Section 9.01(d) hereof.

“Trustee” shall mean U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, its successors and assigns.



Section 2.02  Authority for this 2026 Series Resolution

This 2026 Series Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Master Bond Resolution.

[End of Article II]



ARTICLE III - USEFUL LIFE

Section 3.01 Determination of the Useful Life of the System

The period of usefulness of the System is hereby determined to be not less than forty (40) years
from the date of adoption of this 2026 Series Resolution.

[End of Article III]



ARTICLE IV - AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF THE 2026 BOND

Section 4.01 Principal Amount: Designation of 2026 Bond; Maturity and Interest Payment Dates

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of the Master Bond Resolution, the District intends to issue a
commercial loan in the principal amount of Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($750,000). The loan
will be evidenced by a Series of Bonds entitled “Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina
Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2026” (the “2026 Bond”). The 2026
Bond shall bear a series designation as determined by the District Representative, but in all cases shall
include the calendar year of the issuance thereof. The 2026 Bond may be sold as a single Series or from
time to time as multiple Series bearing any such designation as appropriate. References herein to the 2026
Bond shall include all Series of Bonds authorized by this 2026 Series Ordinance. As authorized by Section
9.01(d) hereof, any Series of the 2026 Bond may be issued as Taxable Bonds, and in such event, it shall
bear an appropriate designation so as to distinguish its tax status.

(b) Should the 2026 Bond not be issued in calendar year 2026, the designation for the 2026
Bond and all other references to “2026” recited herein shall be changed to appropriately reflect the year of
such actual issuance. References herein to the 2026 Bond shall include all Series of Bonds.

Section 4.02  Purposes of the 2026 Bond

The 2026 Bond is authorized for the principal purposes of: (a) providing funds to reimburse the
District for the costs of the Improvements; and (b) paying certain costs and expenses relating to the issuance
of the 2026 Bond.

Section 4.03  Date of Issue; Interest Rates; Maturity; Redemption

(a) The Date of Issue of the 2026 Bond shall be the date of delivery thereof, subject to an
alternative designation by the District Representative. The 2026 Bond shall mature in such principal
amounts and shall bear interest at such rates, not to exceed 6.0%, as may be determined by a District
Representative pursuant to Article V hereof provided that the final maturity of the 2026 Bond shall not
extend beyond 30 years from the Date of Issue of the initial Series of 2026 Bond issued hereunder. The
2026 Bond shall mature as Serial Bonds or Term Bonds, with such mandatory sinking fund installments as
are set forth in a schedule approved by the District Representative prior to or simultaneously with the
issuance of such 2026 Bond.

(b) Interest on any Series of 2026 Bond shall be payable on such Bond Payment Dates as are
determined by the District Representative pursuant to Article V hereof. Such interest shall be calculated on
the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Consistent with the terms of the Master
Bond Resolution, the Record Dates for the payment of interest on the 2026 Bond shall be the 15th day of
the month prior to each Bond Payment Date.

(c) The 2026 Bond may be subject to redemption prior to maturity, upon such terms and
conditions, and at such redemption prices, as may be established by a District Representative pursuant to

Article V hereof prior to or simultaneously with the issuance of the 2026 Bond.

Section 4.04  Authentication; Payment of 2026 Bond

(a) The 2026 Bond shall be authenticated by the Registrar on or before such date as it shall be
delivered to the Purchaser. The 2026 Bond shall bear interest from the Date of Issue if no interest has yet
been paid, otherwise from the last date to which interest has been paid and which date is on or prior to the
date of authentication of the 2026 Bond.



(b) Payment of principal of and interest on the 2026 Bond shall be made by the Trustee from
amounts on deposit in the 2026 Debt Service Fund to the person in whose name the 2026 Bond is registered
at the close of business on the Record Date.

() Presentment of the 2026 Bond for payment shall not be required, except for the final
payment of the principal and interest thereon or upon such other condition or indicia of satisfaction as may
be mutually agreed-upon by the District and the Holder of the 2026 Bond.

(d) Whenever the terms of the 2026 Bond, including any Bond Payment Date therefor, require
any action be taken on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday or bank holiday in the State or in any state where
the corporate trust office of the Trustee is located, the action shall be taken on the first Business Day occurring
thereafter.

Section 4.05  Denomination and Numbering of the 2026 Bond

The 2026 Bond shall be numbered R-1 and shall be issued as a single, typewritten bond in registered
form.

Section 4.06  Establishment of 2026 Debt Service Fund

In accordance with Section 7.03 of the Master Bond Resolution, the 2026 Debt Service Fund is
hereby directed to be established by the Trustee on the Date of Issue for the benefit of the Holder thereof.

Section 4.07  Debt Service Reserve Fund

No Debt Service Reserve Fund is being established with respect to the 2026 Bond and no Reserve
Requirement has been set with respect thereto.

Section 4.08  Appointment of Trustee, Paying Agent and Registrar

The Trustee shall signify its acceptance of the duties of Trustee, Paying Agent and Registrar under
this 2026 Series Resolution upon delivery of the 2026 Bond. The District shall pay to the Trustee from time
to time reasonable compensation based on the then-standard fee schedule of such parties for all services
rendered under the Master Bond Resolution and this 2026 Series Resolution, and also all reasonable
expenses, charges, counsel fees, and other disbursements, including those of its attorneys, agents, and
employees, incurred in and about the performance of their powers and duties under the Master Bond
Resolution and this 2026 Series Resolution.

The 2026 Bond shall be presented for registration of transfers and exchanges, and notices and
demands to or upon the Trustee and the District in respect of the 2026 Bond may be served, at the corporate
trust office of the Trustee.

Section 4.09  Form of 2026 Bond

The 2026 Bond, together with the Certificate of Authorization and Assignment to appear thereon,
is to be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A with such necessary and appropriate
variations, omissions and insertions as permitted or required by the Master Bond Resolution or this 2026
Series Resolution with execution thereof pursuant to Article V hereof constituting conclusive evidence of
all such variations, omission and insertions.

[End of Article IV]



ARTICLE V
CERTAIN DELEGATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS

Section 5.01 Certain Delegations.

The Commission hereby expressly delegates to a District Representative the authority, with respect
to the 2026 Bond, to determine, in connection with any Series of 2026 Bond issued hereunder:

(a) whether to issue the 2026 Bond as a single Series or from time to time in several Series;
(b) the manner of sale of such 2026 Bond in accordance with Atticle VII hereof;
(©) the award of such 2026 Bond in accordance with Article VII hereof;

(d the final form of such 2026 Bond, whether to modify the Series designation in accordance
with Section 4.01 hereof, and the exact amount of such 2026 Bond, not to exceed $750,000 in the aggregate
principal amount together with any other Series of 2026 Bond;

(e) whether and the extent to which such Series of 2026 Bond shall be issued as Serial Bonds or
Term Bonds;

® the Date of Issue (if other than the date of delivery), Bond Payment Dates, rate or rates of
interest obtained using the sale procedures of Article VIII hereof, maturity schedule, and the final maturity of
each Series of 2026 Bond, not to exceed 30 years from the Date of Issue of the initial Series of 2026 Bond

issued hereunder;

(2 whether such 2026 Bond shall be subject to optional or mandatory redemption prior to
maturity, and if so, the redemption prices applicable thereto;

(h) whether to use bond insurance, and if so, to make appropriate arrangements to procure any
Municipal Bond Insurance Policy;

(1) whether such 2026 Bond (or any Series thereof) shall be issued as a Taxable Bond,

)] the form of any agreement relating to, and manner of provision of, any continuing financial
and operating disclosures as described at Section 9.02 hereof; and

&) such other matters regarding the 2026 Bond as are necessary or appropriate to effect the
issuance and sale thereof.

[End of Atticle V]



ARTICLE VI - EXECUTION OF 2026 BOND; NO RECOURSE

Section 6.01 Execution

The 2026 Bond shall be executed and authenticated in accordance with the provisions of the Master
Bond Resolution. In the event the Chairman is absent or otherwise unavailable for any reason, the 2026
Bond may be executed by the Vice-Chairman of the Commission (the “Vice-Chairman) or a District
Representative. In the event the Secretary is absent or otherwise unavailable for any reason, the 2026 Bond
may be attested by a District Representative, so long as such person is not the same individual executing
the 2026 Bond.

Facsimiles or electronic signatures by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Secretary, General Manager
or Finance Manager are expressly authorized and permitted with respect to the 2026 Bond and all closing
documents and certificates associated therewith.

Section 6.02  No Recourse

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the District contained in the
Master Bond Resolution or in this 2026 Series Resolution shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations,
promises, agreements, and obligations of the District and not those of any officer or employee of the District
in his or her individual capacity, and no recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal or redemption
price of or interest on the 2026 Bond or for any claim based thereon or on the Master Bond Resolution or
on this 2026 Series Resolution, either jointly or severally, against any officer or employee of the District or
any person executing the 2026 Bond.

[End of Article VI]

10



ARTICLE VII - SALE OF BOND

Section 7.01 Sale of Bond.

The 2026 Bond may be sold on a competitive basis as set forth at Section 7.02 hereof, or on a
negotiated basis as set forth at Section 7.03 hereof, as determined by a District Representative.

Section 7.02 Competitive Sale.

The 2026 Bond may be sold at a date and time certain after public notice thereof. Bids may be
received at such time and date and in such manner as determined by a District Representative. Unless all
bids are rejected, the award of the 2026 Bond may be made by a District Representative to the bidder
offering the most advantageous terms to the District, with the basis of such award and the date and time
certain for opening bids to be set forth in a request for proposals used in connection with the sale of the
2026 Bond (the “RFP”), the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

Any 2026 Bond may be sold to an institution or institutions as a single instrument as a means of
making a commercial loan (a “Direct Placement Purchaser”). The Commission authorizes a District
Representative to distribute the RFP to prospective purchasers of 2026 Bond and award such 2026 Bond to
a Direct Placement Purchaser on the basis of the terms and conditions contained therein. To the extent the
RFP has been distributed, or the award to any Direct Placement Purchaser has been made, prior to the
enactment of this 2026 Series Ordinance, all such actions are ratified, approved and confirmed. Such 2026
Bond shall be issued as a single Bond (or separate single Bonds if the 2026 Bond are sold in multiple
Series), without CUSIP identification (unless otherwise agreed by the Direct Placement Purchaser and a
District Representative on behalf of the District), shall not be issued in book-entry-only form, and no official
statement shall be prepared in connection with the sale of such 2026 Bond. The Direct Placement Purchaser
of any such 2026 Bond shall execute an investor letter to the District acknowledging its purchase of such
Bonds as a means of making a commercial loan.

Section 7.03 Negotiated Sale.

In lieu of a competitive sale, the 2026 Bond may be sold to a Direct Placement Purchaser as a
means of making a commercial loan pursuant to negotiation, with or without providing for distribution of
an RFP. In such case, the Commission authorizes a District Representative to obtain financing proposals
from one or more prospective purchasers of 2026 Bond and award the 2026 Bond after negotiation with
prospective purchaser. Such 2026 Bond shall be issued as a single Series (or separate single Bonds if the
2026 Bond are sold in multiple Series), without CUSIP identification (unless otherwise agreed by the Direct
Placement Purchaser and a District Representative on behalf of the District). The Direct Placement
Purchaser of such 2026 Bond shall execute an investor letter to the District acknowledging its purchase of
the 2026 Bond as a means of making a commercial loan.

[End of Article VII]

11



ARTICLE VIII - APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Section 8.01 Use and Disposition of Bond Proceeds.

Upon the delivery of the 2026 Bond and receipt of the proceeds thereof, such proceeds shall be
remitted directly to the District and thereafter applied and used by the Finance Manager to pay costs of
issuance of the 2026 Bond and to pay, or reimburse the District for, the cost of the Improvements.

[End of Article VIII]

12



ARTICLE XI - COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF THE CODE

Section 9.01 Tax Covenants.

(a) General Tax Covenant. The District will comply with all requirements of the Code in order
to preserve the tax-exempt status of the 2026 Bond, including without limitation, (i) the requirement to file
Form 8038-G, Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations, with the Internal Revenue
Service, and (ii) the requirement to rebate certain arbitrage earnings to the United States Government
pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code. In this connection, the District covenants to execute any and all
agreements or other documentation as it may be advised by Bond Counsel will enable it to comply with
this Section 9.01, including its certification on reasonable grounds that the 2026 Bond is not an “arbitrage
bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

(b) Tax Representations. The District hereby represents and covenants that it will not take any
action which will, or fail to take any action which failure will, cause interest on the 2026 Bond to become
includable in the gross income of the Holders thereof for federal income tax purposes pursuant to the
provisions of the Code and the United States Treasury Regulations (the “Regulations”). Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, the District represents and covenants that:

1) All property financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the 2026 Bond will be
owned by the District or another political subdivision of the State so long as the 2026 Bond are
Outstanding in accordance with the rules governing the ownership of property for federal income
tax purposes.

(ii) The District shall not use, and will not permit any party to use, the proceeds of the
2026 Bond, or any bonds refunded thereby, in any manner that would result in (i) 10% or more of
such proceeds being considered as having been used directly or indirectly in any trade or business
carried on by any Nongovernmental Person, (ii) 5% or more of such proceeds being considered as
having been used directly or indirectly in any trade or business of any Nongovernmental Person
that is either “unrelated” or “disproportionate” to the governmental use of the financed facility by
the District or by any other Governmental Unit (as the terms “unrelated” and “disproportionate”
are defined for purposes of Section 141(b)(3) of the Code) or (iii) 5% or more of such proceeds
being considered as having been used directly or indirectly to make or finance loans to any
Nongovernmental Person.

(iii)  The District is not a party to, and will not enter into or permit any other party to
enter into, any contract with any person involving the management of any facility financed or
refinanced with the proceeds of the 2026 Bond or by notes paid by the 2026 Bond that does not
conform to the guidelines set forth in Revenue Procedure 2017-13, or a successor revenue
procedure, Code provision or Regulations.

@iv) The District will not sell, or permit any other party to sell, any property financed
or refinanced with the 2026 Bond to any person unless it obtains an opinion of Bond Counsel that
such sale will not affect the tax-exempt status of the 2026 Bond.

W) The 2026 Bond will not be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of Section
149(b) of the Code. The District shall not enter into, or permit any other party to enter into, any
leases or sales or service contract with any federal government agency with respect to any facility
financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the 2026 Bond and will not enter into any such leases
or contracts unless it obtains the opinion of Bond Counsel that such action will not affect the tax-
exempt status of the 2026 Bond.

13



(a) Arbitrage Bonds, Rebate. The District covenants that no use of the proceeds of the sale of
the 2026 Bond shall be made which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the Date of Tssue of such
2026 Bond would have caused the 2026 Bond to be “arbitrage bonds” as defined in the Code, and to that
end the District shall:

(i) comply with the applicable regulations of the Treasury Department previously
promulgated under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, and any
regulations promulgated under the Code, so long as the 2026 Bond is Outstanding;

(ii) establish such funds, make such calculations and pay such amounts, in the manner
and at the times required in order to comply with the requirements of the Code and Regulations
relating to required rebate of certain amounts to the United States Government;

(iii)  make such reports of such information at the time and places required by the Code
and Regulations; and

(iv)  take such other action as may be required to assure that the tax-exempt status of
the 2026 Bond will not be impaired.

(b) Tax Certificate. A District Representative is hereby authorized and directed to execute, at
or prior to delivery of any Series of Bonds, a certificate or certificates specifying actions taken or to be
taken by the District, and the reasonable expectations of such officials, with respect to such Series of Bonds,
the proceeds thereof, or the District.

(c) Bank Qualified. The District does not expect to issue tax-exempt obligations in calendar year
2026 which, when added to the principal amount of the 2026 Bond, would aggregate more than $10,000,000.
Accordingly, the 2026 Bond is hereby designated as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” within the meaning of
Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code.

(d) Taxable Bonds. Prior to or upon the issuance of any 2026 Bond, a District Representative
may, pursuant to Article V hereof, in consultation with Bond Counsel, designate a Series of 2026 Bond as
taxable under the Code (“Taxable Bonds™). The election to issue a Series of Taxable Bonds shall be clearly
indicated by including the phrase “Taxable Series,” or words to that effect, in the series designation of such
Taxable Bonds. The above provisions of this Section 9.01 shall not be applicable to any Series of Taxable
Bonds.

(e) Reimbursement Declaration. Consistent with the Finance Policies, the District has
previously declared its intention to reimburse itself for a portion of the costs of the Improvements with the
proceeds of the 2026 Bond. In this regard, the District confirms and ratifies the prior reimbursement
determination that the District made with respect to the Improvements as recited in the Finance Policies
and the other documentation associated therewith.

Section 9.02 Disclosure Covenants.

(a) The District hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the
provisions of any continuing disclosure certificate or agreement, executed by a District Representative and
dated the date of delivery of the 2026 Bond, which will meet the requirements, as applicable, of Section
11-1-85 of the South Carolina Code, which may require, among other things, that the District file with a
central repository, when requested:

@) a copy of its annual independent audit within 30 days of its receipt and acceptance,
and

14



2 event-specific information, within 30 days of an event adversely affecting more
than five percent of its revenues or five percent of the customers of the System.

The only remedy for failure by the District to comply with the covenants in this Section 9.02 shall be an
action for specific performance of this covenant. The District specifically reserves the right to amend this
covenant to reflect any change in Section 11-1-85 of the South Carolina Code, without the consent of any
Bondholder.

(b) As requested by a Direct Placement Purchaser of the 2026 Bond, the District may furnish, or
agree or arrange to provide, financial information related to or affecting the System as the Direct Placement
Purchaser may reasonably request or require, and as may be agreed upon between such Direct Placement
Purchaser and the District. Upon reasonable notice, the District shall permit the any Holder of the 2026 Bond,
or its agents and representatives, to inspect during regular business hours the District’s books and records
relating to or affecting the System and to make extractions therefrom. Any such covenant or agreement shall
be enforceable solely by an action for specific performance and shall not constitute a default hereunder or
under the 2026 Bond.

[End of Article IX]

15



ARTICLE X - FRONT-FOOT ASSESSMENTS; DEFERRED
PAYMENT OF CERTAIN FEES

Section 10.01  Front-Foot Assessments

The District intends to impose Front-foot Assessments on the properties served by the
Improvements pursuant to Section 6-11-1230 of the South Carolina Code (“Section 6-11-1230”). The
requisite statutory procedures shall be observed with respect to the imposition of the Front-foot
Assessments for payment of the costs of the Improvements, as described in Section 6-11-1230.

Section 10.02 Deferred Payment of Certain Fees

The District further intends to allow the payment of certain tap and capital contribution fees with
respect to properties served by the Improvements on a deferred basis over a period of up to 20 years as
determined by the District Representative. Such deferred payments will bear interest at a rate of interest
no greater than the rate on the 2026 Bond and will be payable on the same manner as property taxes and in
the same manner as the assessments described in Section 10.01 of this 2026 Series Resolution, subject to
the understanding that the deferred payment of these certain fees will occur over a period determined by
the District Representative, regardless of the term of the 2026 Bond. The District will publish notice and
conduct a public hearing with respect to the deferred tap and capital contribution fees at the same time and
in the same manner as the notice and public hearing for the Front-foot Assessments.

At the time that any owner of property served by the Improvements connects to the System, such
owner may elect to (a) immediately pay all applicable tap and capital contribution fees in a lump sum
payment, or (b) sign a customer agreement pursuant to which such owner agrees to pay the applicable tap
and capital contribution fees over a period of years as described in the preceding paragraph. In the event
that an owner elects option (b) then, pending the publication of notice and the holding of a public hearing
as described above, such owner may defer payment of the tap and capital contribution fees applicable to
such properties. The form of the customer agreement is attached as Exhibit C hereto. The General Manager
is authorized to make such changes, modifications, or additions to the form of customer agreement as he
deems advisable. To the extent any customer agreement has been negotiated, executed or delivered by the
District, acting through a District Representative, prior to the adoption of this 2026 Series Resolution, all
such prior actions are approved, ratified and confirmed by the Commission.

[End of Article X]

16



ARTICLE XI - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 11.01  Severability

If anyone or more of the covenants or agreements provided in this 2026 Series Resolution on the
part of the District or any fiduciary to be performed should be contrary to law, then such covenant or
covenants or agreement or agreements shall be deemed severable from the remaining covenants and
agreements, and shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of this 2026 Series Resolution.

Section 11.02 Table of Contents and Section Headings Not Controlling

The Table of Contents and the headings of the several articles and sections of this 2026 Series
Resolution have been prepared for convenience of reference only and shall not control, affect the meaning
of, or be taken as an interpretation of any provision of this 2026 Series Resolution.

Section 11.03 District Representative; Prior Action

All provisions herein delegating any authority to the District Representative are ratified and approved
by the Commission. All prior actions of the District Representative in furtherance of the purposes of this
2026 Series Resolution (including, but not limited to, sale provisions under Article VII hereof) are hereby
approved, ratified and confirmed. The Commission hereby authorizes, approves or ratifies, as applicable,
the engagement of Pope Flynn, LLC as Bond Counsel for the 2026 Bond.

Section 11.04 Other Documents

The Commission authorizes the District Representative, the Chairman, and Secretary, as applicable
or necessary, to execute and sign all other documents necessary to effect the sale, issuance and delivery of
the 2026 Bond. Additionally and as contemplated by Article V, Section 5 of the District’s Bylaws, the
Commission expressly authorizes the District Representative to fulfill the duties of the Secretary in the
event of the absence of the Secretary for any reason, including the attestation of this 2026 Series Resolution.

[End of Article XI]

17



DONE, RATIFIED AND ADOPTED on January 28, 2026.

HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT,

SOUTH CAROLINA
(SEAL)

Chairman

Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District Commission
Attest:

District Representative
Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District

19



EXHIBIT A
FORM OF BOND

WITH THE CONSENT OF THE PURCHASER, AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY CONTRARY
PROVISION CONTAINED IN THE RESOLUTION, THE BOND MAY BE SOLD OR
TRANSFERRED ONLY TO SUBSEQUENT PURCHASERS WHO EXECUTE AN INVESTMENT
LETTER DELIVERED TO THE ISSUER, IN FORM SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER,
CONTAINING CERTAIN REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS AS TO
THE SUITABILITY OF SUCH PURCHASERS TO PURCHASE AND HOLD THE BOND. SUCH
RESTRICTION SHALL BE SET FORTH ON THE FACE OF THE BOND AND SHALL BE
COMPLIED WITH BY EACH TRANSFEREE OF THE BOND.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND
SERIES 2026

No. R-1 $

HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “Issuer”),
for value received, hereby promises to pay to [NAME OF PURCHASER] (the “Purchaser”), or its
registered assigns, but solely from the revenues hereinafter mentioned and not otherwise, the principal sum
of

DOLLARS (§ )

plus interest on the principal amount outstanding at the rate of percent (%) per annum
(computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months). Principal of and interest on this Series
2026 Bond (this “Bond”) shall be payable in accordance with the debt service schedule (each such payment
of debt service is referenced to herein as a “Bond Payment Date”) attached hereto as Schedule A.

Installments of principal and interest on this Bond shall be paid by check or draft drawn upon U.S.
Bank Trust Company, National Association, in Columbia, South Carolina (the “Trustee”), by the Bond
Payment Date to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of business on the fifteenth
day of the month immediately preceding such Bond Payment Date. Any such payment shall fully discharge
the obligation of the Issuer to the extent of the payments so made. [The Issuer and the Purchaser have
mutually agreed to waive all requirements for presentation and surrender of this Bond in connection with
the payment thereof. Upon the final payment of this Bond, the Purchaser will execute and a deliver a
certificate to the Issuer and the Trustee certifying that (i) such payment represents the final payment due on
this Bond and (ii) the Issuer owes no further obligation to the Purchaser respecting this Bond.] The principal
of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on this Bond are payable in any coin or currency of the United
States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

This Bond is issued under, pursuant to, and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of
the State of South Carolina, including particularly Chapter 17 of Title 6 of the Code of Laws of South
Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Act”), a resolution adopted by the Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service
District Commission (the “Commission”) on March 16, 2004, as amended on March 24, 2009, and as
further amended on September 23, 2020 (as amended, the “Master Bond Resolution); and a series
resolution adopted by the Commission on January 28, 2026 (together with the Master Bond Resolution, the
“Resolution”). Certain capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings

A-1



ascribed thereto in the Resolution. Certified copies of the Resolution are on file in the office of the Trustee
and in the office of the Clerk of Court for Beaufort County, South Carolina.

This Bond is issued by the Issuer for the purposes of providing funds to reimburse the Issuer for a
portion of the costs of the Improvements (as defined in the Resolution) and paying the costs of issuance for
this Bond.

This Bond and the interest hereon is a special obligation of the Issuer and is secured by a pledge of
and a lien upon the Gross Revenues (as defined in the Master Bond Resolution) derived from the operation
of the System. The Issuer has also granted to the Holders of the Bonds a contractual lien on the System.
This Bond and the interest hereon are not payable from, nor are they a charge upon, any funds other than
the Gross Revenues pledged to the payment thereof by the Master Bond Resolution. There are presently
outstanding the following obligations of the Issuer which are secured by a pledge of Gross Revenues of the
Issuer on a parity in all respects with that securing this Bond: (i) the outstanding installments due on the
originally issued $2,902,255 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2014B
dated July 23, 2014 (the “2014B Bond™); (ii) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued
$515,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2017A dated August 21,
2017 (the “2017A4 Bond”); (iii) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $14,925,000
Waterworks and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2020B dated November 2, 2020 (the
“2020B Bond”); and (iv) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $235,000 Waterworks
and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2023 dated February 24, 2023 (the “2023 Bond,”
and collectively with the 2014B Bond, the 2017A Bond, and the 2020B Bond, the “Parity Bonds”).

The Master Bond Resolution authorizes the issuance of additional bonds on a parity with this Bond
and the Parity Bonds which, when issued in accordance with the provisions of the Master Bond Resolution,
will rank equally and be on a parity therewith (the “Additional Bonds” and this Bond, the Parity Bonds,
and any Additional Bonds are hereinafter referred to collectively as the “Bonds”).

THE FULL FAITH, CREDIT AND TAXING POWERS OF THE STATE OF SOUTH
CAROLINA OR THE ISSUER ARE NOT PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL
OF OR INTEREST ON THIS BOND, AND THIS BOND SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE AN
INDEBTEDNESS OF THE ISSUER WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY STATE
CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION OR STATUTORY LIMITATION (OTHER THAN THOSE
PROVISIONS PROVIDING FOR INDEBTEDNESS PAYABLE FROM A REVENUE-
PRODUCING PROJECT OR A SPECIAL SOURCE, WHICH SOURCE DOES NOT INVOLVE
REVENUES FROM ANY TAX OR LICENSE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF S.C.
CONST. ART. X, SEC. 14 (10)), BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE GROSS
REVENUES OF THE SYSTEM.

The Resolution contains provisions defining terms, including the properties comprising the System;
setting forth the revenues pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds; setting forth
the nature and extent and manner of enforcement of the security for the Bonds and of such pledge, and the
rights and remedies of the holder hereof with respect thereto; the terms and conditions upon which the
Bonds are issued or may be hereinafter issued payable as to principal and interest on a parity with the Bonds
and equally and ratably secured herewith; the rights, duties, and obligations of the Issuer hereunder and
thereunder; and the terms and conditions upon which the pledge made in the Resolution for the security of
the Bonds and upon which the covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the Issuer made herein and
therein may be discharged at or prior to the maturity or redemption of the Bonds with provision for the
payment thereof in the manner set forth in the Resolution. Reference is hereby made to the Resolution, to
all of the provisions of which any holder of this Bond by the acceptance hereof thereby assents. The
provisions of the Act and the Resolution shall be a contract with the holder of this Bond.

A-2



The Issuer covenants that it will fix and revise, from time to time, rates for services furnished by
the System and such rates shall at all times be maintained so as to be sufficient to provide for the payment
of the principal of and the interest on all obligations of the Issuer payable from the revenues of the System
as and when the same become due and payable; to maintain the Debt Service Funds therefor; if applicable,
to maintain the Debt Service Reserve Funds therefor; to provide for the payment of the Operation and
Maintenance Expenses; to build up and maintain a reserve for depreciation of the System, for contingencies
and for improvements, betterments, and extensions to the System other than those necessary to maintain
the System in good repair and working order.

[INSERT REDEMPTION TERMS]

This Bond is transferable only on the books of registry maintained by the Registrar upon
presentation and surrender hereof to the Registrar together with an assignment duly executed by the
registered owner hereof or his duly authorized representative. Upon such a transfer, the Issuer shall issue
and the Registrar shall authenticate a new bond identical in all respects hereto but in the principal amount
then due and owing hereon. For every exchange or transfer of this Bond, the Issuer or the Trustee or
Registrar, as the case may be, may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee, or other
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer.

The principal of and interest on this Bond are exempt from any and all State, county, municipal,
and other taxation whatsoever under the laws of the State of South Carolina, except for inheritance, estate
or transfer taxes, but the interest hereon may be included for certain franchise fees or taxes.

Whenever the terms of this Bond require any action be taken on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday
or bank holiday in the State or in any state where the corporate trust office of the Trustee is located, the action
shall be taken on the first Business Day occurring thereafter.

It is hereby certified, recited, and declared that all acts, conditions, and things required by the
Constitution and statutes of the State of South Carolina to exist, to happen and to be performed precedent
to and in the issuance of this Bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form,
and manner as required by law.

This Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of Authentication
hereon shall have been duly executed by the Registrar.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

A-3



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina, has caused
this Bond to be executed in its name by the manual signature of the Chairman of its Commission and attested
by the manual signature of the General Manager, as District Representative, under the seal of the Issuer as

ofthis_ day of 2026.

(SEAL)

Attest:

HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE
DISTRICT, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chairman
Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District Commission

General Manager, as District Representative
Hilton Head No.1 Public Service District

A-4



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Bond has been registered in the name of [Name of Purchaser], on the registration books kept
by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Registrar.

Date of Authentication:

, 2026

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:
Its

A-5



(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the wundersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto

the within bond

and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

attorney to

transfer the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the
premises.

Dated:

Signature (District Representative)

Notice: The signature to the assignment must
correspond with the name of the registered owner
as it appears upon the face of the within bond in
every particular, without alteration or enlargement
or any change whatever.



Schedule A

Debt Service Schedule

A-7



EXHIBIT B
FORM OF RFP

Request for Proposals

Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina
$750,000* Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2026

Bids due by: Tuesday, January 20, 2026 @ 12:00 p.m.

Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina (“HHNOI”) is requesting proposals from
financial institutions with respect to a commercial loan to be evidenced by a $750,000* Waterworks and
Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2026 (the “Bond”). Your response to this Request for
Proposals (this “RFP”) would be greatly appreciated. The following key assumptions are to be utilized in
preparing your proposal:

Issuer:

System:

Authorization:

Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina

HHNOI, established by Act No. 596 of the Acts and Joint Resolutions of the
General Assembly of the State of South Carolina for the year 1969, as amended, is
a South Carolina special purpose district. HHNO1 provides waterworks and
sewage disposal services through its waterworks and sewer system (the “System”)
to approximately 20,000 water customers and 18,000 sewer customers throughout
the northern portion of Hilton Head Island.

The Bond is issued under, pursuant to, and in full compliance with (i) the
Constitution and laws of the State of South Carolina, including particularly
Chapter 17 of Title 6 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended
(the “SC Code™), (ii) a resolution entitled “A RESOLUTION AMENDING AND
RESTATING A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE
OF WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF HILTON
HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT, STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO,” adopted by the Hilton Head
No. 1 Public Service District Commission (the “Commission”), the governing body
of HHNOI1, on March 16, 2004, as amended by a resolution entitled “A
RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR AND APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO A
RESOLUTION ENTITLED ‘A RESOLUTION AMENDING AND RESTATING
A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF HILTON
HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND
OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO’ WHICH AMENDMENTS
EXTEND THE TIME PERIOD WITHIN WHICH AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS MUST BE FURNISHED AND MODIFYING THE
REQUIREMENTS FOR DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS; AND OTHER
MATTERS RELATING THERETO” adopted by the Commission on March 24,
2009, and further amended by a resolution entitled, “A RESOLUTION FURTHER
AMENDING A RESOLUTION ENTITLED ‘A RESOLUTION AMENDING
AND RESTATING A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND
SALE OF WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF
HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT, SOUTH CAROLINA,;
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO’, AND OTHER MATTERS

*Not-to-exceed amount.



Improvements.

Use of Proceeds:

Tax Treatment:
Bank Qualified:

Rating:

Assessments:

Security:

RELATING THERETO” adopted by the Commission on September 23, 2020
(collectively, the “Bond Resolution”) and (iii) a resolution entitled “A
RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF A
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND
OF HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT, SOUTH
CAROLINA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY
THOUSAND DOLLARS (§750,000), AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING
THERETO anticipated for adoption by the Commission on January 28, 2026 (the
“Series Resolution” and together with the Bond Resolution, the “Resolution”).
Certain capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the
meanings ascribed thereto in the Resolution. Copies of the Bond Resolution
(composite) and draft Series Resolution are available upon request.

The District has recently undertaken certain improvements to the System consisting
of the installation of water distribution lines and sewage collection lines in and
around Miller Road, Slim Loop Road, Steelpan Road, Squire Pope Road, Wildhorse
Road, Farmers Club, Dillon Road, Wiley Road, William Hilton Parkway, Sunday
Ford, Mitchellville Road, Juke Joint Lane, Marvin Lane, Azalea Street, Williams
Drive, Beach City Road, Jonesville Road, Gumtree Road, Janis Manor, Elizabeth
Road, Marshland Road, Outlaw Road, Spanish Wells Road, Old House Creek Drive
and various other areas of the District (collectively, the “Improvements”). The
construction and installation of the Improvements was completed between April
2023 and July 2025. In accordance with the District’s Finance Policies (the “Finance
Policies”), and specifically FP4: Debt Policy (D), as amended and restated on July
26,2023 and various declarations of intent to reimburse as authorized by the Finance
Policies, the Commission constructed the Improvements with funds on hand with
the intention of being reimbursed by the proceeds of the Bond. Pursuant to the
provisions of Section 4.01(A)(1) of the Bond Resolution, the Commission is
authorized to issue the Bond to recoup funds previously expended.

Proceeds of the Bond will be used (1) to reimburse HHNOI for the costs of the
Improvements, and (2) to pay cost of issuance on the Bond.

Tax-Exempt.
Yes.

No rating is expected to be obtained for the Bond. HHNO1 is not currently rated
by any rating agency.

SC Code Section 6-11-1230, authorizes special purpose districts, including
HHNOI, to finance certain public improvements through the imposition of front-
foot assessments (“FFAs”) on benefited properties. FFAs, once lawfully imposed,
are collected through the annual ad valorem tax billing process. HHNOI
anticipates using FFAs to recover the costs of the Improvements and, subject to
satisfaction of applicable notice and procedural requirements, expects to impose
the FFAs following the issuance of the Bond.

General. HHNO1 anticipates that the payments of the Bond will be made from

FFAs. To the extent such funds are insufficient to make payments on the Bond, the
Bond is payable from and secured by a pledge of the Gross Revenues of the

B-2



System. The Bond is also secured by a contractual lien on the System that is equal
of the statutory lien granted under Section 6-21-330 of the SC Code.

Parity Debt. The Bond will constitute a “Bond” under the Bond Resolution and
will be issued on parity with:

1) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $2,921,430
Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series
2014B dated July 23, 2014;

(ii) the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $515,000
Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series
2017A dated August 21, 2017,

(ili)  the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $14,925,000
Waterworks and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2020B
dated November 2, 2020; and

(iv)  the outstanding installments due on the originally issued $235,000
Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2023
dated February 24, 2023.

Reserve. A Debt Service Reserve Fund will not be funded for the Bond.

Rate Covenant. HHNOI1 has covenanted and agreed that it will, at all times,
prescribe and maintain and thereafter collect rates and charges which will yield
annual Net Earnings in each Fiscal Year equal to at least 120% of the Annual
Principal and Interest Requirements for all Series of Bond Outstanding. See
Section 5.01(B) of the Bond Resolution for a full description of the rate covenant.

The table below provides an overview of HHNO1’s Net Earnings and debt service
coverage over the past three fiscal years.

Year Ended June 30, 2025 2024 2023
Net Income(loss) before capital contributions
per Financial Statements $1,898.738 $1917,123 1,167,064
Capacity Fees 170,944 1,381,832 356,520
Add: Depreciation 5420424 5215476 5,140,534
Net Pension Expense 390,435 406,321 408,173
SCRS Retirement Contributions (592,189) (518.900) (466.,620)
Anwrtization 209,177 325,462 325462
Bond Issuance Costs 175.243 - 37,500
Interest Expense (Bonds) 752,731 273,469 308,748
Assessments - Debt Service 208,324 237,137 222184
Less: Property Taxes — Debt Service (1.877.746) (1.793252)  _ (1.583535)
Net Eamings Available for Debt Service $6,756.081 $7,444,668 $5,916,030
Debt Service on Revenue Bonds $2.468,287 $2,461,000 $2,437,980
Coverage of Debt Service by Net Earnings * 274% 303% 243%
Debt Coverage without Capacity Fees 267% 246% 228%

Additional Bonds Test. From time to time, additional Bonds may be issued on
parity with the Bond(s) subject to the following requirement being met: Net
Earnings during the most recent Fiscal Year for which audited financial statements
of the System are available, shall be not less than 120% of the maximum Combined

B-

(95



Issue Size:

Debt Structure:

P&I Payments:

Optional Prepayment:

Bond Counsel /
Documentation:

Audit:

Closing Costs:

Annual/Ongoing Costs:

Increased Cost:

Trustee:

Annual Principal and Interest Requirements on all Bonds Outstanding, plus the
proposed Series of Bonds. See Section 4.02(7) of the Bond Resolution for a full
description of the Additional Bonds Test.

$750,000%.

HHNOI seeks to maximize the term of the Bond, and has proposed ten-, fifteen-,
and twenty-year options for the Bond. Preliminary amortization schedules
associated with each term option have been provided in Exhibit A and should be
used in preparation of your bid. Bidders may choose to bid on one, all, or a
combination of the term options. HHNOI reserves the right to modify the
amortization to achieve its desired debt service structure. Regardless of the term
proposed or the options offer, a single fixed rate for the entire term (of the
particular term offered) of the amortization provided is required.

Annual principal and interest payments (interest calculated on a 30/360 basis) on
June 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2027, with a final payment on June 1,
2036, 2041 or 2046, as applicable.

The District is seeking maximum flexibility with respect to redemption provisions.
Please specify your lowest interest rate under one or both of the following
structures:

1) The Bond is prepayable at any time, in whole or in part, without penalty
at par; and/or

2) Any prepayment structure that would result in the lowest interest rate
(specify the prepayment structure, redemption premium or make-
whole, if any, and the corresponding interest rate).

Pope Flynn, LLC will serve as Bond Counsel to HHNO1 in connection with the
Bond and will prepare the necessary legal documentation, subject to the review
and approval by the bank winning the bid on the Bond (the “Bank’) and its counsel,
if any. By submitting a proposal, the Bank waives any conflict of interest with
respect to Pope Flynn, LLC serving as counsel to HHNO1 in connection with the
Bond.

The financial statements of HHNO1 are available on its website at the following
link: https://hhpsd.com/publications/ (not intended as an active-hyperlink).

None anticipated to be paid to or on behalf of the Bank. Please specify any
exceptions.

None anticipated to be paid to or on behalf of the Bank. Please specify any
exceptions.

HHNOI1 will not consider any proposals that include future interest rate
adjustments relating to the Bank’s increased costs, changes in tax rate, capital
adequacy, capital requirements, etc.

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association shall serve as Trustee for the
Bond, and will hold the 2026 Debt Service Fund. The Trustee will also hold both
the Assessment Account into which the FFAs, as applicable, shall be deposited
and transferred to make payments on the Bond as the same come due.

B-4



Conditions: Please specify any conditions to the closing of the transaction (other than finalizing
acceptable documents) and any rights reserved to withdraw the proposal.

Closing: Closing is anticipated to take place on Friday, February 27, 2026. The interest rate
bid must be held firm until at least this date.

Ongoing Disclosure:  HHNOI will provide annual financial statements in electronic format to the Bank
upon request. Publication to HHNO1’s website should be considered compliant
for purposes of this requirement.

Award: HHNOT1 will consider all proposals that conform to the requirements set forth in
this RFP. Unless all proposals are rejected, the award will be made to the financial
institution offering terms that are, in the sole discretion of HHNOI, most
advantageous to HHNO1. HHNOI reserves the right to reject any or all proposals
and to negotiate with any financial institution of its choosing.

Delivery: The Bond is expected to be delivered on February 27, 2026. The purchase price
then due must be paid in federal funds or other immediately available funds.

Representations: The winning bidder will be required to execute an' investment letter to HHNOT1.
The form of the investment letter is available upon request.

Loan Treatment: BY SUBMITTING A BID IN RESPONSE TO THIS RFP, EACH BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES
AND REPRESENTS TO HHNOI1 THAT (1) NO OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR OTHER
OFFERING MATERIAL WILL BE FURNISHED OTHER THAN THIS RFP; (2) THE BIDDER
HAS KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERIENCE IN FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS MATTERS AND
THAT IT IS CAPABLE OF EVALUATING THE MERITS AND RISKS OF MAKING THE
COMMERCIAL LOAN TO BE EVIDENCED BY THE BOND AND IS FINANCIALLY ABLE
TO BEAR THE ECONOMIC RISK OF HOLDING THE BOND; (3) NO CUSIP NUMBER
WILL BE OBTAINED FOR THE BOND; AND (4) THE BIDDER INTENDS TO ACQUIRE THE
BOND SOLELY FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT AS A VEHICLE FOR MAKING A COMMERCIAL
LOAN AND WITH NO PRESENT INTENTION TO DISTRIBUTE OR RESALE THE BOND OR
ANY PORTION THEREOF.,

To be considered, a proposal must be received by 12:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 20, 2026. Email
submission of the proposal to the following persons is required.

agraybill@hhpsd.com
Iflynn@popeflynn.com
dhunsicker@popeflynn.com

Questions, if any, shall be timely submitted to HHNO1’s Finance Manager:

Amy Graybill, Finance Manager
Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District
Telephone: (843) 681-0529
Email: agraybill@hhpsd.com



Exhibit A — Preliminary Amortization Schedules

10 Year 15 Year 20 Year
2027 $ 64,000.00 $ 31,00000 $ 15,500.00
2028 $ 66,000.00 $ 39,500.00 $ 25,000.00
2029 $ 68,500.00 $ 41,00000 $ 26,500.00
2030 $ 71,000.00 $ 4250000 $ 27,500.00
2031 $ 73,500.00 $ 44,00000 $ 29,000.00
2032 $§ 76,000.00 $ 46,00000 $ 30,000.00
2033 $ 78,500.00 $ 48,00000 $ 31,500.00
2034 $ 81,500.00 $ 50,00000 $ 33,000.00
2035 $ 84,000.00 $ 51,500.00 $ 34,000.00
2036 $ 87,000.00 $ 54,00000 $ 36,000.00
2037 $ 56,00000 $ 37.500.00
2038 $ 58,00000 $ 39,500.00
2039 $ 60,500.00 $ 41,000.00
2040 $ 63,00000 $ 43,000.00
2041 $ 6500000 $ 45.000.00
2042 $ 47.000.00
2043 $ 49,000.00
2044 $ 51,000.00
2045 $ 53,000.00
2046 $ 56,000.00
Total $ 750,000.00 $ 750,000.00 $ 750,000.00

B-6



EXHIBIT C

FORM OF CUSTOMER AGREEMENT

The undersigned, a new or existing customer of the Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District,
South Carolina (the “District”), hereby acknowledges and agrees as follows:

1l The District has, pursuant to a series resolution adopted on January 28, 2026 (the
“Resolution”), agreed to allow the payment of certain tap and capital contribution fees over a period of [20
years]. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning given to such terms
in the Resolution, a copy of which shall be made available by the District upon request.

2, Pursuant to the Resolution, the undersigned hereby elects to defer the fees set forth below
on the terms and subject to the conditions of the Resolution.

[INSERT DESIGNATION AND AMOUNT OF FEES TO BE DEFERRED]

The fees so deferred are referred to herein as the “Deferred Fees.” The undersigned acknowledges and
agrees that, as contemplated by the Resolution, (a) the District will establish the amount of,, interest rate on,
and maturity schedule of the Deferred Fees following the publication of notice and the holding of a public
hearing, and (b) the undersigned will be obligated to pay such fees at such times and in such amounts as
the District may determine, without offset, reduction, diminishment, or variance. The undersigned may
prepay the Deferred Fees at any time, without premium or penalty. The time period beginning on the date
of this Agreement and terminating upon the payment in full of the Deferred Fees is referred to herein as the
“Deferral Period.”

3. To the extent that the Deferred Fees, or any portion thereof, are for sewer service (the
“Sewer Fees”), the obligation to pay such Sewer Fees shall constitute a lien against the affected property
pursuant to S.C. Code §§ 6-11-1230(1) and 6-11-1240. Sewer Fees that are not paid when due and payable
shall be and constitute a lien upon the real estate to which the Sewer Fees relate for so long as such Sewer
Fees remain unpaid. In addition to such other rights and remedies as may be available to the District at law
or in equity for the collection of Sewer Fees, the lien may be enforced by the District in the same manner
and fashion as the lien of property taxes on real estate. The lien herein provided shall be superior to all other
liens except liens for unpaid property taxes. The method provided herein for the enforcement of the
collection of past due Sewer Fees shall not be the exclusive method of enforcing such collections, and the
District shall remain fully empowered to enforce the collection of any such Sewer Fees in any other lawful
manner.

4. The undersigned shall have the right to appear and be heard at a public hearing of the Hilton
Head No. 1 Public Service District Commission, the governing body of the District, to be held at

[date and location to be determined].

5. The property to which the Deferred Fees apply will remain subject to the obligation to pay
the Deferred Fees during the Deferral Period notwithstanding the subsequent sale, transfer, or other
disposition of such property. The transferee(s) of such property shall be obligated to make all remaining
installments with respect to Deferred Fees properly chargeable against such property. The undersigned
hereby agrees (a) to notify the District upon any transfer of the property to which the Deferred Fees apply,
and (b) to inform the transferee of the obligation to pay the Deferred Fees as set forth herein.



6. The undersigned hereby acknowledges that the District is allowing the deferral of the
Deferred Fees as an accommodation to the undersigned, and the District shall not be subject to any
obligation, liability, duty, or recourse as a result of allowing such deferral.

SIGNATURE

NAME (PLEASE PRINT)

ADDRESS (PLEASE PRINT)

Given as of this ___ Day of 2026.

C-2



() Huntington Bank

DATE:

ISSUE:
ISSUER/BORROWER:
PURCHASER/LENDER:

PRIMARY CONTACT:

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

PURCHASE PRICE:

TERM BOND ELECTION:

USE OF PROCEEDS:

SECURITY:

TAX STATUS:

BOND COUNSEL.:

PURCHASER’S COUNSEL.:

FEE TO HUNTINGTON
FOR COUNSEL.:

CLOSING DATE:

FINAL MATURITY:

INTEREST RATE:

OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT:

TERM SHEET

January 20, 2026

Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2026
Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District, South Carolina (“Issuer”)
Huntington Public Capital Corporation (“Huntington”)

Abby King — Sales Executive, Huntington Public Capital
Phone Number: (614) 204-0121

$750,000.00

Par

The Bond will be a single certificate term bond, with principal payments representing
mandatory principal redemptions.

Proceeds of the Bond will be used (1) to reimburse HHNO1 for the costs of the
improvements to the System consisting of the installation of water distribution lines and
sewage collection lines in various areas of the District, and (2) to pay cost of issuance on

the Bond.

The Bond is payable from and secured by a pledge of the Gross Revenues of the
System. The Bond is also secured by a contractual lien on the System that is equal of the
statutory lien granted under Section 6-21-330 of the SC Code.

The District anticipates that the payments of the Bond will be made from FFAs.
Tax Exempt, Bank Qualified
Pope Flynn, LLC

TBD

$3,000.00
On or before February 27, 2026

Option 1: June 1, 2036 (10 Year Amortization)
Option 2: June 1, 2041 (15 Year Amortization)
Option 3: June 1, 2046 (20 Year Amortization)

Option 1: 4.25%
Option 2: 4.49%
Option 3: 4.68%

Option 1: The Bond is subject to optional prepayment, in whole but not in part, upon 30
days prior written notice to the Purchaser as follows:

e 102% of the then principal balance plus accrued interest any time before June 1
1, 2031

e 100% of the then principal balance plus accrued interest anytime on or after June
1, 2031.



Term Sheet — Revenue Bond

Page 2

RATE ADJUSTMENT:

PAYMENTS:

TRANSACTION FEES:

DIRECT PLACEMENT:

DOCUMENTATION:

PAYING AGENT:

RATING:

POS/OFFICIAL STATEMENT:
CUSIP:

DTC CLOSING:

CREDIT APPROVAL.:

PROPOSAL EXPIRATION:

HUNTINGTON CONTACT:

Option 2: The Bond is subject to optional prepayment, in whole but not in part, upon 30
days prior written notice to the Purchaser as follows:

e 102% of the then principal balance plus accrued interest any time before June 1
1, 2033

e 100% of the then principal balance plus accrued interest anytime on or after June
1, 2033.

Option 3: The Bond is subject to optional prepayment, in whole but not in part, upon 30
days prior written notice to the Purchaser as follows:

e 102% of the then principal balance plus accrued interest any time before June 1
1, 2036

e 100% of the then principal balance plus accrued interest anytime on or after June
1, 2036.

If the funding of the Bond has not occurred by February 27, 2026, then the Interest Rate
and payment will be adjusted to maintain Huntington’s economics as of the date of
issuing this Term Sheet.

Annual principal and interest payments commencing June 1, 2027 (calculated on a
30/360 basis).

All transaction fees, including those of Bond Counsel, shall be the responsibility of the
Issuer.

Huntington is extending credit as a lender in the usual course of its loan business through
the purchase of the Bond for its own account in its normal and customary business
practice, with no current intention on the resale, distribution or transfer thereof.

Transaction documents shall be prepared by Bond Counsel, subject to review and
approval by Huntington and its Purchaser’'s Counsel.

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

Not required by Huntington

Not required by Huntington

Not required by Huntington

Not required by Huntington

The terms set forth herein reflect a proposed, preliminary structure and are subject to
final credit approval by Huntington and the negotiation of mutually acceptable
documentation. They do not represent all of the terms and conditions that may ultimately
be included in a financing between the Issuer and Huntington.

This proposal shall expire at Huntington’s option if (a) Huntington has not received the
Issuer's written acceptance by January 29, 2026 and (b) if the closing date of the Bond
has not occurred by February 27, 2026.

Abby King

Huntington Public Capital

Cell: (614) 204-0121
Email: abby.king@huntington.com




Term Sheet — Revenue Bond Page 3

Respectfully Submitted,
Abigail € King

ACCEPTED BY:
Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District

By

Name

Title

Date

Issuer TIN

Huntington Public Capital® ("HPC"), a division of The Huntington National Bank (the "Bank"), is providing the information contained in this document for
discussion purposes only in connection with an arm's-length transaction under discussion between you and HPC. If you are a "municipal entity" or
"obligated person” within the meaning of the municipal advisor rules (the "Rules") of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Rule 15Ba1-1 et seq.
this information is provided to you pursuant to and in reliance upon the "bank exemption," and/or other exemptions and/or the "general information"
exclusion provided under the Rules. HPC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours. HPC is not acting as a
municipal advisor or financial advisor, and has no fiduciary duty, to you or any other person pursuant to the Rules. The information provided in this
document is not intended to be and should not be construed as "advice" within the meaning of the Rules. HPC is not recommending that you take or
refrain from taking any action with respect to the information contained in this document. Before acting on this information, you should discuss it with
your own financial and/or municipal, legal, accounting, tax and other advisors as you deem appropriate. As used in this notice, the "Rules" means
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Securities and Exchange Commission's Rule 15Ba1-1, et seq., and any related municipal
advisor rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, all as they may be amended from time to time.



911 Center
IL.ease Renewal




HiltonHead PSD

21 Oak Park Drive pres s Ve o
PO Box 21264 <l
Hilton Head Island, SC 29925
www.hhpsd.com

To: Pete Nardi, General Manager
From: Amy Graybill, Finance Manager
Subject: 911 Lease Renewal Analysis

Date: January 28, 2026

Introduction

In October 2003, the District entered into a lease agreement with the Town of Hilton Head for
3,538 square feet of office space located on the second floor of the District’s administration
building. The base rent was set at $10.40 per square foot, or $36,789.25 per annum, and was based
on an allocation of the annual debt service related to the building. The lease also requires the
Town to pay additional rent in the amount of 19.407% of utility expenses and all other common
operating expenses associated with the building. This percentage is based on square footage. In
2021, the term was extended until June 30, 2026. At that time, the base rent was increased to
$10.74 per square foot, or $38,000 per annum ($3,166.67 per month) and the common area
expenses were set at $20,000 per annum ($1,666.67 per month) which was the current average of
the Town’s 19.407% share of utility and all other common operating expenses.

Discussion

The Town has indicated to the District that they are building their own facility and intend to vacate
the premises. They plan to move out by the June 30, 2026, renewal date or shortly thereafter. They
would like to amend the current agreement to go monthly through December 2026 with the right
to cancel at any time. The base rent is an intergovernmental agreement which has never been
valued at market rates. Given that and the short duration of the anticipated renewal, staff
recommends that the District maintain the current base rent and only increase the common area
maintenance expenses up to the new current average. Staff has estimated this to be $2,300 per
month.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends authorizing the General Manager to renew the Town 911 Dispatch Center
lease monthly through December 31, 2026 with the monthly base rent remaining at $3,166.67
and the monthly common area maintenance increasing to the current average of $2,300.00.




Purchasing Policy Review




1/21/2026

PSD
Procurement
Policy

December 2025

[y

Legal Procurement Requirements

« As a South Carolina special purpose district, HHPSD is not directly subject to all of the state’s
procurement procedures. HHPSD is required to formally adopt its own written procedures
“embodying sound principles of competitive procurement” which adhere to the general principles
of the South Carolina procurement code.

« General procurement principles of the South Carolina procurement code include maximizing the
value of purchasing funds to the “fullest extent practical”, ensuring procurements are the “most
advantageous,” fostering competition, adhering to ethical laws, ensuring fair and equitable
treatment of all persons who deal with the procurement system, and developing an “efficient and
effective means of delegating roles and responsibilities for the various government procurement
officers.”




1/21/2026

Major Factors for HHPSD

* Limited availability of vendors
¢ Specialization of water and sewer parts, equipment, and services.
* Reliability and scheduling availability of contractors.
e Quality of contractor work.

* Right size procurement

* Procurement can run the spectrum from very simple verbal quotes
to 1,000-page formal bid solicitations.

* Cost versus benefit of procurement procedures for vendors.
e Cost versus benefit of procurement procedures for staff.

HHPSD’s Current Policy Thresholds

« Small Purchase Threshold - items under $50,000

* Neither competitive quotations nor formal commission approval are required. Although not
required, staff still aims to get multiple vendor price quotes when practical.

¢ Unbudgeted Purchases - items from $50,000 - $250,000

* At least two verbal or written solicitations are required. Commission approval is required only if
additional funding is necessary to undertake the purchase. Unused appropriated funds may be
transferred within and between departments and from a prior year in this category.

 Unbudgeted Purchases - items from $250,000 - $1,000,000

* At least two verbal or written solicitations are required. Commission approval is required.

 Budgeted and Unbudgeted Purchases - items over $1,000,000

* Competitive Bidding is required and Commission approval is required.




1/21/2026

Excepted ltems

* Architectural, engineering and surveying contracts

* Professional services for attorneys, auditors, engineering and
other consultants, financial advisors, underwriters, and
technology providers

* Specific exemptions approved by the Commission (this section
has not been used)

* Bond and Lease Purchases (but must be approved by the
Commission)

* Single Source Vendors

* Emergency Procurement

« Cooperative Procurement

* Noncompetitive Purchases (controlled by patent or copyright)

Why does the PSD Exempt
Professional Services?

Some utilities procure professional services, such as
engineering consulting, via Request for Qualifications (RFQ)
and Indefinite Quantity/Delivery Contracts (IQCs and IDCs).

To enable efficient and effective completion of projects, financing, legal, biological, and
planning/topical studies, the PSD relies on its staff experience and expertise to select the
appropriate professional service provider.
« Staff has not only extensive work experience, but extensive contacts for selecting professional
services (peers at other utilities, our involvement in trade associations, etc.)

Providers’ experience and track record with the PSD is vital in effective delivery of services, because
the provider often serves as an extension of PSD staff, albeit on a non-permanent basis.




1/21/2026

Other Items Addressed

* Small, Minority, and Women-owned Businesses
e Surplus Property
* Unlawful to use District Position for Private Gain

* Prohibition of Interest (No procurement between the District and its
officers permitted)

« Bid Requirements
« Alternative Project Delivery Methods
* Appeals; Authority to Debar

Questions?




AMENDED AND RESTATED PURCHASING AND PROCUREMENT POLICY

HILTON HEAD NO. 1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT

Pursuant to a Resolution dated July 24, 2024, the Hilton Head No.1 Public Service District
Commission (the “Commission™), the governing body of the Hilton Head No.1 Public Service
District (the “District”) has approved and adopted this Amended and Restated Purchasing and
Procurement Policy (this “Policy”). The District, as a political subdivision of the State of South
Carolina (the “State”), is required to adopt procedures embodying sound principals of appropriately
competitive procurement and this Policy has been adopted for such purpose. Further, this Policy is
to ensure the fair and equitable treatment of all persons who are providing, or seeking to provide,
supplies and/or services to the District.

A. PURCHASE AUTHORIZATION

L Purchasing Agent

The General Manager of the District or an officer of the District designated by the General
Manager shall be the “Purchasing Agent” for the District. The Purchasing Agent shall be
responsible for: (A) the purchase of supplies, materials and equipment and contractual services
required by any office or department of the District; (B) the storage and distribution of all supplies,
materials and equipment required by any office or department of the District; (C) establishing
written specifications, whenever practicable, for supplies, materials and equipment required by
any office or department of the District - such specifications shall be definite and certain and may
be weighted based on those factors deemed prudent by the Purchasing Agent; (D) maintaining,
whenever practicable, a written inventory of the District’s materials, supplies or equipment; (E)
soliciting and maintaining an up-to-date list of qualified suppliers who have requested their names
to be added to a “bidders list”. The purchasing agent shall have authority to remove temporarily
the names of vendors who have defaulted on their quotations, attempted to defraud the District or
who have failed to meet established specifications or delivery dates; (F) considering
environmentally sustainable options where appropriate; and (G) obtaining as full and open
competition as possible on all purchases, contracts and sales as described in this Policy.

IL. Budgeted Purchases

A. For the purchase of an individual item that is less than $50,000 and has been
included in the District’s most recently adopted Operating Budget and/or Capital Improvement
Plan, no competitive quotations are required. The Commission authorizes the Purchasing Agent to
make all such purchases on an as-needed basis.

B. For the purchase of an individual item that is $50,000 or greater but less than
$1,000,000 and has been included in the District’s most recently adopted Operating Budget and/or
Capital Improvement Plan, verbal or written solicitations will be requested from at least two (2)
suppliers. The Commission authorizes the Purchasing Agent to make all such purchases on an as-
needed basis.



C. For the purchase of an individual item that is $1,000,000 or greater and has been
included in the District’s most recently adopted Operating Budget and/or Capital Improvement
Plan, competitive bidding is required and all such purchases shall be formally approved (to include,
when the circumstances may dictate in the discretion of the General Manager, ratification
subsequent to the purchase) by the Commission outside of the regular budget process.

II1 Unbudgeted Purchases

A. For the purchase of an individual item that is less than $50,000 and such item has
not been included in the District’s most recently adopted Operating Budget and/or Capital
Improvement Plan, no competitive quotations are required and such purchases need not be
formally approved by the Commission. The Commission authorizes the Purchasing Agent to make
all purchases of less than $50,000.

B. For the purchase of an individual item that is $50,000 or greater but less than $250,000
and such item has not been included in the District’s most recently adopted Operating Budget
and/or Capital Improvement Plan, verbal or written solicitations will be requested from at least
two (2) suppliers. All such purchases shall be formally approved (to include, when the
circumstances may dictate in the discretion of the General Manager, ratification subsequent to
the purchase) by the Commission only if additional funding is necessary to undertake the
purchase. !

C. For the purchase of an individual item that is $250,000 or greater but less than
$1,000,000 and such item has not been included in the District’s most recently adopted
Operating Budget and/or Capital Improvement Plan, verbal or written solicitations will be
requested from at least two (2) suppliers. All such purchases shall be formally approved (to
include, when the circumstances may dictate in the discretion of the General Manager,
ratification subsequent to the purchase) by the Commission.

D. For the purchase of an individual item that is $1,000,000 or greater and such item
has not been included in the District’s most recently adopted Operating Budget and/or Capital
Improvement Plan, competitive bidding is required and all such purchases shall be formally
approved (to include, when the circumstances may dictate in the discretion of the General
Manager, ratification subsequent to the purchase) by the Commission.

IV. Purchases Over Budgeted Amount

A, For purchases of all individual items that are greater than $50,000 but otherwise
less than $50,000 in excess of the amount authorized for such purchase in the District’s most
recently adopted Operating Budget and/or Capital Improvement Plan, no additional Commission
approval is required.

! The District Manager or his designee shall administer the budget and may authorize the transfer of unused
appropriated funds within and between departments and capital projects as necessary to achieve the goals of the
budget and may carry forward unused appropriated capital and other project funds from the prior year into following
years for completion.

2



B. For purchases of all individual items that are greater than $50,000 and which have
been determined to be more than $50,000 but less than $250,000 in excess of the amount
authorized for such purchase in the District’s most recently adopted Operating Budget and/or
Capital Improvement Plan, such purchases shall be formally approved (to include, when the
circumstances may dictate in the discretion of the General Manager, ratification subsequent to the
purchase) by the Commission only if additional funding is necessary to undertake the purchase.?

C. For purchases of all individual items that are greater than $50,000 and which have
been determined to be more than $250,000 in excess of the amount authorized for such purchase
in the District’s most recently adopted Operating Budget and/or Capital Improvement Plan, such
purchases shall be formally approved (to include, when the circumstances may dictate in the
discretion of the General Manager, ratification subsequent to the purchase) by the Commission.

V. Certain Contracts

1. Architectural, engineering and surveying contracts may be directly negotiated. The
selection, however, shall be made upon certain qualifying criteria as established by the General
Manager.

2 Professional services for (a) attorneys, (b) auditors, (¢) engineering and other
consultants, (d) financial advisors, () underwriters and (f) technology providers are explicitly
exempted from the provisions of this Policy.

3. The District, in the reasonable discretion of the General Manager, may exempt
specific supplies, services, information technology or construction from the purchasing procedures

required by this Policy; such exemptions shall be approved by the Commission.

4. Where applicable, and subject to approval of the Commission acting by Resolution,
the Commission may elect to exempt any contract or purchase from the terms of this policy.>

VL Lease Purchases: Bonds

To the extent necessary, the General Manager may negotiate the terms of any bond issuance
or lease purchase transaction so long as such terms of such financing are ratified and/or approved
by the Commission and no such financing is issued prior to the actual approval by the Commission.

VII.  Single Source Vendors

The District may, out of reasonable necessity and in the reasonable discretion of the
Purchasing Agent, make direct purchases from a single source vendor. Examples include, but are
not limited to, technical and operational suppliers where only select markets provide service within

2 The District Manager or his designee shall administer the budget and may authorize the transfer of unused
appropriated funds within and between departments and capital projects as necessary to achieve the goals of the
budget and may carry forward unused appropriated capital and other project funds from the prior year into following
years for completion

3 See Glasscock Co., Inc. v. Sumter Cnty., 361 S.C. 483, 491, 604 S.E.2d 718, 722 (Ct. App. 2004) (allowing “local
governments needed flexibility to determine what is ‘appropriately competitive’ in light of the public business they
must transact”).

3



an area, vendors that provide long-term support or services for specific equipment such as water
treatment and distribution systems and wastewater collection and treatment systems, radio systems,
phone systems, extrication equipment, etc.

VIII. Emergency Procurement

The Purchasing Agent may make or authorize others to make emergency procurements
when there exists a threat to public health, welfare, critical economy and efficiency, safety under
emergency conditions, or where normal daily operations are affected; provided that such
emergency procurements shall be made with such competition as is practical under the
circumstances. A written determination of the basis of the emergency and the selection of the
particular contractor shall be included in the contract file.

IX. Cooperative Purchasing

The District may participate in, sponsor, conduct or administer a cooperative purchasing
agreement for the procurement of any supplies, services or construction services with one or more
public procurement entities or external procurement activities in accordance with an agreement
entered into between the participants. Such cooperative purchasing may include, but is not limited
to, joint or multi-party contracts between public procurement entities and open-ended state public
procurement unit contracts which shall be made available to local public procurement units.

X. Small, Minority, and Women-owned Businesses

The District wishes to ensure that small, minority, and women-owned business enterprises
be offered a fair opportunity to fully participate in the overall procurement process of the District.
The District does not have a certification program for small, minority, and women-owned
businesses, but encourages qualifying businesses to become certified with the South Carolina
Department of Transportation (www.scdot.org/business/bus-development-dbe-sbe-cert.aspx)*
and/or the South Carolina Division of Small and Minority Business Contracting and Certification
(https://smbcc.sc.gov/)*. As used herein, “small, minority, and women-owned business” means a
firm located within Beaufort County which is certified by the aforementioned programs. In an
effort to be inclusive in its procurement process, the District consults directories maintained by the
aforementioned organizations to identify and directly solicit certified small, minority, and women-
owned businesses operating on Hilton Head Island and/or in Beaufort County.

XI. Surplus Property

L. Surplus property consists of two types of property: (A) property available from the
State that can be purchased by the District from the General Services Division of the State without
requiring competitive bids; or (B) property of the District which: (a) has reached or is rapidly
approaching an expiration date or the end of its useful life; (b) is worn-out or otherwise no longer
useful to the organization for its intended purposes; (c) is obsolete; or (d) too costly to maintain or
operate.

4 Not intended as an active hyperlink.



2. Items which have little or no salvage value, considering the cost of disposing of
same, such as older model computers and printers, may be offered to employees at nominal prices,
as established by General Manager, before other means of disposition are considered.

3. Items with salvage value, but which are likely to bring little at a conventional
auction, may be sold through an internet site such as www.govdeals.com or any other reputable
internet site or auction service which the General Manager has determined will offer the most
exposure to potential interested buyers, or which will likely result in the highest return for the
District.

4. Surplus property with trade-in value may also be traded-in to a dealer or vendor in
exchange for, or toward the purchase of, items needed by the District.

5. Surplus property may also be sold to, traded with or donated to other governmental
entities, if such is found to be in the best interests of the District.

B. LIMITATIONS

L Unlawful to use District position for private gain

It shall be unlawful for any official, employee, volunteer or member of the Commission to
use their relationship with the District as a means to gain economic advantage while conducting
personal business activities with firms which provide special pricing to the District and using their
status with the District to gain such advantage shall be punishable to the fullest extent of the laws
of the State.

II. Noncompetitive purchases

The purchasing of supplies, materials or items of equipment that are controlled by virtue
of patent or copyright rights so that competition is impracticable, or where the articles proposed to
be purchased are produced and offered for sale by fewer than five reputable firms eligible to offer
their products in direct competition and where it is impracticable to substitute other supplies,
materials or items of equipment proposed to be purchased, informal purchase negotiations may be
undertaken by the staff and purchase awards may be made as a result of such negotiations so long
as the Purchasing Agent otherwise complies with the provisions of this Policy.

III. Prohibition of interest

1. Any purchase order or contract within the purview of the District in which an agent
or any officer or employee of the department is financially interested, directly or indirectly, shall
be void.

2, Every officer, employee, volunteer or member of the Commission associated with
the District are expressly prohibited from accepting, directly or indirectly, from any person to
which purchase order or contract is or might be awarded, any rebate, gift, money or anything of
value whatsoever, except where given for the use and benefit of the District.



3, These limitations are not intended to prohibit the acceptance of articles of negligible
value which are distributed generally, nor to prohibit employees from accepting social courtesies
which promote good public relations nor to prohibit employees from obtaining loans from regular
lending institutions.

C. BID REQUIREMENTS

L Competitive Bidding

Except as otherwise provided herein, all purchases of and contracts for supplies and
contractual services, all leases and rental agreements and all sales of the District’s property which
has become obsolete and usable shall, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Policy, be
based wherever possible on competitive bids.

II. Bid Acceptance and Evaluation

Bid acceptance and evaluation tabulations shall be unconditionally accepted without
alteration or correction, except as authorized herein. Bids shall be evaluated based on the
requirements set forth in the invitation of bids, which may include criteria to determine
acceptability, such as cost, inspection, specifications, testing, quality workmanship, delivery and
suitability for a particular purpose. The District reserves the right to reject or accept any proposal.
The District is not required to accept the lowest bidder, but rather shall accept the bid that most
closely conforms to the bid conditions.

II1. Pre-qualified Candidates

If the Purchasing Agent determines that the use of competitive bidding is not suited for the
complexity of the project, may not allow necessary flexibility, may not result in requisite
innovation or may unduly restrict cost savings, the Purchasing Agent may determine to pre-qualify
the field of bidders and thereafter request competitive bids from only the prequalified candidates.

IV. Performance Bonds

1. Generally. Payment and performance bonds are required for all District
construction contracts in excess of $100,000 (or such other amount as may be required by State
law), and any other procurements in which risk protection is appropriate as set forth above, in the
amount of 100% of the contract price. The bonds shall be delivered by the proposed contractor to
the District at the same time the contract is executed. If a bidder or vendor fails to deliver the
required bonds, the bidder's or vendor’s bid or offer shall be rejected and its bid or offer security
shall be forfeited. In the event of such a failure the District may, at its discretion: (i) award the
contract to the next lowest bidder; or (ii) engage in negotiations for a contract with the next eligible
offer; or (iii) conduct a re-procurement to satisfy the requirement.

2. Reduction of Amount. The amount of the payment and performance bonds may be
reduced, depending upon the circumstances in a procurement.




(A)  Priorto Solicitation: The District may elect to reduce the performance bond
or payment bond required prior to issuing a solicitation for a construction contract
procurement to a lesser amount if the District determines that such lesser amount provides
adequate protection for the District or that it is less costly or more advantageous to the
District to self-insure a part of the performance of the contractor.

(B)  During Performance: The District may reduce the amount of the bonds as
work is completed, if the General Manager determines in writing that such reduction is in
the best interests of the District.

V. Right to revoke award

The District expressly reserves the right to revoke the public contract award to the lowest
and best bidder if: (1) it determines that the information on which the award was granted was
erroneous; and (2) the correct information makes the awarded bidder’s material or product not
meet the standards and specification required by the law. If an award is revoked, the District must
re-advertise in order to award the bid.

This section shall be deemed a part of the terms and conditions of the Commission
solicitation of bids, and all bidders shall be deemed to have accepted the terms and conditions of
this section.

VL Procurement Regulations of Other Entities

Whenever procurements are funded with state or federal funds, the procurement shall be
made in compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations, if any, as may be
required as a condition of the receipt of such funds. Whenever this Policy is more restrictive than
the state or federal laws and regulations, the provisions of this Policy and the related District
procedures shall be followed.

VII.  Projects with Multiple Stages

When projects subject to the provisions of this Policy have multiple stages, which could be
subject to either a single bid or proposal for all stages or to multiple bids or proposals for the stages
as they evolve, the District may seek bids or proposals for the entire project or it may seek bids or
proposals for the initial stage of the project and thereafter amend the initial contract after it is in
operation, or within a reasonable time of its completion, to include the subsequent stages. In the
latter instance, the subsequent stages must be similar in character of performance and location,
when location is relevant to the initial stage, and the pricing components for the subsequent stages
must be substantially the same as the initial contract submitted for bids or proposals.

VIII. Multi-Term Contracts

To the extent permitted by law, a contract for supplies or services may be entered into for
a period of time not to exceed a total of five years, provided: (a) the terms of the contract and the
conditions of renewal or extension, if any, are included in the solicitation and funds are available
for the first fiscal period at the time of contracting; (b) such contracts shall contain a clause stating

7



that when funds are not appropriated to support continued performance in any subsequent fiscal
period, the contract shall be cancelled and shall not be subject to non-substitution of subsequent
providers; and (c) pricing increases for succeeding fiscal periods, if any, shall not exceed 10% of
the preceding year’s contract price.

D. ALTERNATIVE PROJECT DELIVERY METHODS

L Generally

The General Manager, in proposing to utilize this section of the Policy, must detail in the
project file why utilizing this section of the Policy is in the best interests of the District. Thereafter,
the Commission shall make a determination whether to authorize one of the alternative
procurement methodologies provided hereinbelow. The terms used herein and not otherwise
defined shall generally have the same meaning as for those terms defined in the State’s
procurement code, which is found at Sections 11-35-2910 et seq. of the Code of Laws of South
Carolina, 1976, as amended; where any such terms have been changed, those terms have been
intentionally adapted for use by the District. The policy of the State in promoting alternate forms
of project delivery, as set forth in Act No.174 of 2008, is acknowledged as authority for
implementing these specialized procurement methods.

II. Alternative Procurement Methods

1. Design-Build is a project delivery method in which the District enters into a single
contract for design and construction of an Infrastructure Facility. Procurement of Design-Build
services is appropriate when the District does not have the in-house capability to design and
supervise the project, and when compliance with technical regulations and best practices for
construction is critical. With the assistance of experts, the District may develop performance
specifications for the desired infrastructure which can then be used to develop Design
Requirements for submission to Design-Build firms for development. The Design-Build services
may be awarded to either (a) the responsive, responsible bidder where price is a factor, or (b) the
responsible contractor (selected from a group of pre-approved contractors) who is the low bidder.
Errors and omissions insurance is required to cover the architectural and engineering services
provided by the offeror.

2 Design-Bid-Build is a project delivery method in which the District sequentially
awards separate contracts, the first for Architectural and Engineering Services to design the project
and the second, based on competitive bidding by the District, for construction of the project
according to the final design. This is the traditional method of designing and constructing facilities.
The procurement of Construction Management Services (see D(IT)(6) hereinbelow) for such a
project would make this method a specialized method of procurement.

3. Operation and Maintenance is a project delivery method whereby the District enters
into a single contract for the routine operation, routine repair, and routine maintenance of an
existing, or to-be-constructed, Infrastructure Facility. Operation and Maintenance services shall be
procured from prequalified contractors by utilizing competitive sealed proposals submitted in
response to a Request for Proposals, which has established the supplies and services required to
maintain and operate infrastructure facilities.




4. Design-Build-Operate-Maintain is a project delivery method in which the District
enters into a single contract for design, construction, operation and maintenance of an
Infrastructure Facility over a contractually defined period. Ownership of the facility may be in the
name of the District or leased by the District from a non-profit corporation. All or a portion of the
funds required to pay for the services provided by the contractor during the contract period are
either appropriated by the District prior to award of the contract or secured by the District through
fee or user charges or other sources of revenue. The District should not participate in financing
any such project without an opinion from bond counsel or tax counsel. Errors and Omissions
insurance is required to cover the architectural and engineering services provided by the offeror.

5. Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain is a project delivery method in which the
District enters into a single contract for design, construction, finance, maintenance, and operation
of an Infrastructure Facility over a contractually defined period. No funds are appropriated to pay
for any part of the services provided by the contractor during the contract period. Procurement of
Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain services shall generally follow procedures outlined
above for Design-Build projects with the additional elements of financing and operation
incorporated into the project. A preliminary determination by the District should have been made
that project revenues would be sufficient, over the length of the proposed contract, to cover design,
construction, finance, and operations, and that the traditional Design-Bid-Build approach is
inappropriate or impracticable for this project. The District should not participate in financing any
such project without an opinion from bond counsel or tax counsel. Errors and Omissions insurance
is required to cover the architectural and engineering services provided by the offeror.

6. Construction Management at-risk is a project delivery method in which the District
awards separate contracts, one for architectural and engineering services to design an Infrastructure
Facility and the second to a construction manager at-risk for both preconstruction and construction
of the Infrastructure Facility according to the design specifications of the architect or engineer.
The contract with the construction manager at-risk may be awarded before completion of design.
The construction manager at-risk shall assume the risk for construction, rehabilitation, alteration
or repair of the Infrastructure Facility at a fixed or guaranteed maximum price.

7. Construction Management Services is a project delivery process by which a
qualified third party provides construction leadership with a defined scope throughout various
phases of the project (e.g. planning, design and construction). Construction Management Services
are typically procured using competitive sealed bidding or competitive sealed proposals and bids
may be awarded to either (a) the responsive, responsible bidder where price is a factor, or (b) the
responsible contractor (selected from a group of pre-approved contractors) who is the low bidder.
Construction Management Services, specifically included a construction manager at-risk, may be
procured for any of the alternative delivery methods authorized herein. Errors and Omissions
insurance may be required to cover any architectural and engineering services provided by the
offeror.

8. Other Special Project Delivery Methods or combinations of the above may be
utilized provided that the District can demonstrate that the delivery methods meets the intent of
this Policy and receives the approval of the Commission. Insurance of various types may be
required as additional security for the District for the particular method of project delivery.

9



E. APPEALS: AUTHORITY TO DEBAR

I. Protests

L Right to Protest. Any actual or prospective bidder, proposer or contractor who is
aggrieved in connection with the solicitation or award of a contract shall protest to the General
Manager. The protest, setting forth the grievance and the grounds thereof, shall be submitted in
writing within ten days after such aggrieved person knows or should have known of the facts
giving rise thereto, but in no circumstance after 15 days notification of the award of the contract.

2. Resolution. The General Manager shall have the authority to settle or resolve a
protest of an aggrieved bidder, proposer or contractor (actual or prospective), concerning any
award of a contract.

3. Decision. If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement, the General Manager
shall issue a decision in writing within ten business days after receipt of the initial protest. The
decision shall state the reasons for the action taken.

4. Appeal. A decision of the General Manager may be appealed to the Commission
within 10 business days of the submission of the written decision by the General Manager.
Requests for an appeal to the Commission shall be held during the next occurring regularly
scheduled meeting of the Commission, or such other time as may be mutually agreeable to the
parties. At the meeting, the aggrieved party and the General Manager shall have an opportunity to
present their findings to the Commission. Upon receipt of the findings of both parties, the
Commission shall make a final determination. The decision of the Commission shall be final and
conclusive.

II. Debarment

After reasonable notice to the person or firm involved and reasonable opportunity to be
heard, the Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to debar or suspend a person, contractor or
firm from consideration for award of any contract by the District. Any debarment or suspension of
a person or firm, including the terms thereof, shall be approved by the Commission (with advice
from the District’s attorney) in writing.

10



FY’26 2" Quarter
Management Report




e
N 4

HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
STRATEGIC GOALS & OBJECTIVES
Adopted: July 2025

2nd Qtr. Fiscal Year ‘26 Management Report:

1. Goal No. 1 — Water Services: Provide for all of our customers’ water supply needs with the highest
quality water possible in a cost-effective manner

1. PSD tap water is in compliance with all state and federal regulations.
2. We are under construction of the Reverse Osmosis Plant Expansion.

a. Instrumentation and controls installs continuing inside plant.

b. Liquid chlorine bulk storage and day tanks delivered.

c. Generator delivery anticipated in March.

d. Current RO Plant Expansion Project Finish Date: Nov. 2, 2026.
3. We are under construction of RO Well #4.

a. On track for bore hole completion in mid-March.

b. Pump testing completion estimated for April 1 and drilling demobilization on April 9.

c. Complete landscaping, June 19.

d. Install of emergency generator, Oct. 12.

e. Current RO Well #4 Project Finish Date: Oct. 16, 2026.

4. We are under construction of Aquifer Storage & Recovery (ASR) Well #2.

a. New Middle Floridan Aquifer monitoring well construction underway.
b. Upper casing of ASR #2 set.
c. Current ASR #2 Project Finish Date: Dec. 9, 2027.

5. Leg O’Mutton Booster Station project is complete.

6. We met with BJWSA and Broad Creek PSD to review draft terms of an interim agreement that will
create a study period of no minimum-take requirement and an off-peak rate based on a reduction of
peak rate. BJWSA and ourselves have renewed our request to Broad Creek PSD that a three-party
agreement be signed; awaiting reply from Broad Creek.

7. Awaiting S.C. DOT utility coordination for U.S. 278 Corridor Project. Latest update is that the S.C. DOT
plans to complete construction design in 2027 and begin construction in 2028. The current design the
DOT is pursuing does not require new bores of our wholesale water pipeline; however, there will be
relocations involved in the bridge project. There is no update regarding a potential federal grant the
County is seeking that would fully fund the original project design and thereby require pipeline

relocation.



2. Goal No. 2 — Recycled Water Services: Provide for all of the District’s wastewater collection, treatment,
and recycled water distribution services in a cost-effective manner while enhancing and protecting the
Island’s environment.

8. Sanitary sewer smoke testing performed in six different neighborhoods in October. News release sent.

9. The Old House Creek subdivision low-pressure sewer (LPS) project is complete. Eight (8) of 25 homes
have either connected or requested connection to date.

10. Construction contract and notice to proceed for the Screw Pump Replacement Project were approved
in December. Contractor has 450 days to complete. Equipment ordering is underway.

3. Goal No. 3 - Environmental and Sustainability: Operate in a sustainable manner with high regard for
protecting and improving the environment.

11. Pete Nardi helped the HHI-Bluffton Chamber of Commerce’s Environmental Affairs Committee create
content for a new “Sustainable Solutions” webpage, which offers efficiency tips aimed at our business
community. Link: https://www.hiltonheadchamber.org/research-resources/sustainable-solutions

12. PSD Recycled Water Plant lagoons once again hosted the Hilton Head Audubon Society’s Annual
Christmas Bird Count. A highlight of this year’s count was the presence of Goldeneye ducks!

4. Goal No. 4 — Customer Relations: Direct all activities to achieve a consistently high level of customer
satisfaction.

13. Monthly e-newsletters sent.
14. News releases sent on sanitary smoke testing in October, and freezing temperatures and water service

in December.
5. Goal No. 5 — Financial Responsibility: Conduct all District activity in a fiscally responsible manner.

15. PSD debt overview prepared by financial advisors and provided to Commission in December.
16. Non-revenue water for 15t Qtr. is projected to be 15%.

6. Goal No. 6 — Organizational Excellence and Leadership: Achieve organizational excellence and
leadership.

17. Facilities Maintenance Technician John Stewart celebrated his 25-year work anniversary with the PSD
on Dec. 21. Congrats and thank you, John!

18. One (1) workplace injury to date in FY '26.

19. Field Services Technician Tim Durham has obtained his “E” Water Treatment License.

20. Eleven (11) PSD team members earned Employee Recognition during the 2" Quarter: Trey O’Leary;
Thomas Gilmore; Dustin Berry; Kiefer Clear; J.P. Sarricolea; Arthur Washington; Doug Nice; Tim
Durham; Shaun Chisolm; Alfred Young; and Shani Wittingham.

21. Training programs this quarter included: S.C. Association of CPAs (SCAPA) Workplace Alignment &
Employee Engagement, Executive Presence, Strategic Planning, and Conflict Resolution; Foundational
Cybersecurity Awareness; WEASC Sea Island District workshops; S.C. Water Quality Association
quarterly meeting; S.C. Department of Environmental Services’ Environmental Assistance Conference.



7. Goal No. 7 — Asset Management: Acquire, maintain, protect, and secure the District’s property,
databases, plant and equipment assets (investment in the future).

22,

Routine meetings are being held with key staff and our software vendor to prepare for launch of the
Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS). The product is called Llumin.
Implementation will take approximately six months. This is a top priority for the PSD in FY '26, as it will
be culturally transformative. The CMMS will guide and track system maintenance, capital project
needs/decisions, work orders, inventory and purchasing, and more. This implementation represents a
milestone moment in the modernization of the PSD. We are planning to have our Asset Manager, Hal
Hylton, lead a Commission education session on the CMMS.

8. Goal No. 8 — External Relations: Develop, expand and leverage the District’s positive relationships with
external organizations, utilities and governments.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27,

28.

Pete Nardi discussed the PSD, water sector careers, and leadership with members of the HHI-Bluffton
Junior Leadership Class of 2026 during their Community Leadership Day in December.

Pete Nardi and Amy Graybill met with leadership from the Coastal Community Development
Corporation, which is a local nonprofit working on workforce housing. The CCDC would like to present
potential partnership opportunities to the Commission. We are targeting the boards’ February
meeting.

Participants in Osher Lifelong Learning Institute visited the PSD in November for a presentation on our
water resources and a tour of the Recycled Water Plant. OLLI said the PSD visit is one of their top-
requested and has a waiting list!

The PSD team of Lorie Chisolm, Sarah Hickman, Pam Driskell, and Tim Ryan and family competed in the
first-ever HHI Mac & Cheese Festival in November. The event, which was organized by the PSD’s own
Jim Hewitt, drew more than 800 attendees and raised thousands of dollars for hearing-impaired
assistance and Island Rec. Great job, team!

The PSD’s very own “Red Hot Chili Preppers” Chili Cook Off Team competed in the 40th Annual Hilton
Head Kiwanis Chili Cook Off in October 11 at Lowcountry Celebration Park. The event raised more than
$15,000 for local youth causes. A big thanks to team members Jim Hewitt, Tim Ryan (and family), Kiefer
Clear, and Thomas Gilmore!

S.C. General Assembly and federal legislation we are tracking, including assessments of some of the
bills from the S.C. Water Quality Association (SCWQA):

a. The General Assembly is expected to approve extension of the Utility Relocation Act provision
that provides up to 4.5 percent of the total transportation project budget for water and sewer
relocations. If the extension is not approved, the provision sunsets in June 2026.

b. H 3997. This bill formally recognizes water/sewer workers who work during emergencies as
first responders. It has implications for workers compensation coverage as well as survivor tax
exemptions if workers are killed in the line of duty. Statewide utility support for this bill.

c. H 4629 Would require DES to promulgate regulations requiring PWS to maintain a
minimum disinfectant level of free or total chlorine with exceptions (J.L. Johnson - D) In H
Labor and Commerce. The regulation would require every public water system in the State to
maintain a minimum disinfectant level of free or total chlorine in the water being delivered to the
distribution system, in finished water storage tanks, and in all points of the distribution. The
regulations cannot specify a minimum disinfectant level of less than 0.1 parts per
million. SCWQA Assessment: This bill is unlikely to move. Until very recently, EPA was set to
publish proposed changes to its Microbial and Disinfection Byproducts (MDBP) Rules by July
31, 2025. Now EPA has received an extension to propose the rule by July 2027, with the final




rule due October 2028. South Carolina is a state that does not previously have a minimum level.
Hazen and Sawyer predicts a Required Minimal Level (instead of detectable amount) as a likely
change in the upcoming rule. According to Hazen, the proposed minimum for chlorine only
could range from 0.2 mg/L to 0.5 mg/L, with 0.2 mg/L being more likely. Currently PWSs that do
not provide filtration must meet 0.2 mg/l of residual disinfectant concentration in the water (SC
Code Regs 61-58.10(D)(1)(b)(ii)).

d. H 4703 Would create the SC Special Purpose District Accountability Office within Office

j

of State Auditor (Oremus — R) In H Ways and Means. The new office would provide oversight
of the 250 special purpose districts in the state. The office would need to maintain a statewide
public directory; collect and publish budgets, financial reports, audits, millage rates, fees,
revenues, expenditures, and debt disclosures; maintain a public transparency portal; and
enforce compliance.

H 4747 Would authorize counties with countywide water / sewer systems to acquire
municipal water systems within the county and would establish a related acquisition
process (Pedalino — R) In H Judiciary. Would be allowed starting July 1, 2026. Requires a
petition to the governing body of the county requesting the acquisition of a specified municipal
water system. The petition must be signed by at least 40% of the qualified electors residing
within the service area of the municipal water and sewer system proposed to be acquired. At
least one public meeting must be held. The county governing body may enact an authorization
ordinance within 30 days unless it finds (1) the acquisition would create an undue financial
burden on the county's water and sewer system; (2) the terms of acquisition would violate state
or federal law; and (3) the petition was not validly certified.

H 4709 / S 687 Would require a public works project contract to include a requirement
that any iron or steel permanently incorporated in the project be produced in the United
States (Yow and Mitchell = R / Grooms — R (S Transportation Chair)) H 4709: In H Labor and
Commerce: S 687: In S Finance. Exceptions include if (1) US-produced iron or steel products
are not produced in sufficient quantities, reasonably available, or of satisfactory quality; (2) the
use of US-produced iron or steel products will increase the total cost of the project by more than
25%; or (3) complying is inconsistent with the public interest. A minimal use of foreign steel and
iron materials is allowed if (1) the materials are incidental or ancillary and are not separately
identified in the project specifications; (2) the cost of such materials does not exceed 0.1% of
the project's total steel and iron costs or $2,500, whichever is greater; and (3) the foreign steel
and iron material is a component comprising 5% or less of the materials cost of an otherwise
domestically produced steel or iron product. SCWQA Assessment: Oppose. We don’t need
any other restrictions on our ability to implement critical public infrastructure projects. We
believe that the President’s tariffs on foreign steel are more than adequate to address the
concerns behind this bill.

H 4697 Would prohibit political subdivisions from investing, contracting, or expending
public funds with Chinese companies (McCravy — R) In H Labor and Commerce.

S 686 Would prohibit public entity contracts and grants that discriminate based on race
(Alexander — R (S Interstate Cooperation Chair), Peeler — R Senate (S Finance Chair), Martin —
R (S Corrections and Penology Chair), Massey — R (S Rules Chair), and Turner —R) In S
Finance. A public entity may not require, impose, mandate or administer any procurement
preference, set-aside, quota, goal, or similar program that classifies, prioritizes, or discriminates
based on race in awarding contracts, subcontracts, grants, or any other public benefit.

H 4973 Would prohibit critical infrastructure contracts with foreign-owned companies
(Gilliam - R, Rankin — R, Yow — R, C. Mitchell - R, and Haddon — R and Chair of H Operations
and Management) In H Labor and Commerce. Critical infrastructure is defined to include water
treatment facility. SCWQA Assessment: Seeking members’ input on whether this legislation
would impact operations.

S 743 Would prevent a political subdivision from enacting or enforcing an ordinance that
requires/permits the addition of fluoride to a public water system (PWS) or to water that
will be introduced into a PWS (Kennedy — R) In S Medical Affairs. Similar to H 4258 (2025)
(left in H committee). SCWQA Assessment: No position. Member Feedback: One member is

4



waiting on the EPA and federal guidance before making any decisions. Another member
suggested opposition, sharing the following:
= Local Communities and their local populations (including medical and scientific
members) should be involved in the decision making process regarding fluoridation not
attorneys and public officials making blanket decisions for very different areas of a state
= Tooth decay, water sources, hatural environments (including naturally occurring fluoride)
may be very different throughout a state and therefore decisions treating all regions
similarly regarding medical issues may be problematic
= Local public water systems and their customers deserve a local voice and that is found
in the elected officials (or appointed in some cases) that govern local water authorities,
commissions, and municipals.
= The member would be neutral on fluoridation itself (should you put fluoride or not in
water) the issue is where those decisions should reside...at the local level or state level.

k. H 4655 Would require DES to conduct quarterly testing for urinary metabolites in certain
wastewater treatment facilities (Edgerton — R) In_H Judiciary. DES would test (1) each
wastewater treatment facility located within 10 miles of a municipality with a population of
250,000 or more; and (2) at least 10 wastewater treatment facilities located within 10 miles of a
municipality (a) with a population of 100,000 or more but less than 250,000; (b) with a
population of 25,000 or more but less than 100,000; and (c) with a population of less than
25,000. In its selection, DES must prioritize facilities that reasonably represent typical
wastewater systems of municipalities with those population categories. SCWQA Assessment:
Seeking member input about the purpose of this testing (community drug use, antibiotics,
alcohol, etc).

|.  H 4583 Would require data centers to use closed-loop water cooling systems and prevent
ban use of groundwater or municipal water or cooling (Cromer — R and Gilreath — R) InH
Labor and Commerce. Entitled the SC Data Center Responsibility Act. A data center (1) would
be required to use a closed-loop water or liquid cooling system resulting in zero net water
withdrawal and zero wastewater discharge; (2) must not extract groundwater, use municipal
water for cooling, or use evaporative or open-loop cooling systems; and (3) must submit annual
closed-loop certifications.

m. S 724 Would require commercial data center to annually report past (and anticipated)
water usage if more than 3 million gallons of water used per month (Blackmon — R) InS
Judiciary. Commercial data centers must report the volume of surface water, groundwater, or
any other water source they utilized during the prior calendar year; the reports are due to DES
annually by January 31. The commercial data center must also report the anticipated volume of
water that the commercial data center will utilize during the calendar year in which the report is
filed. SCWQA Assessment: No position.

n. S 784 (similar) Would require commercial data centers to report water usage for prior 12
months (Massey — R and S Rules Chair and Campsen — R and S Fish and Game Chair) This
bill does not have the 3 million gallons of water per month threshold found in S 724. Includes
surface and ground water usage for the past 12 months and anticipated amount for next 12
months.

0. S 706 Would allow qualified non-degreed individuals to become licensed engineers
through verified experience and national examination (Rice — R) In S Labor, Commerce and
Industry. For PEs, allows applicants to be licensed if they successfully pass the NCEES
Fundamentals of Engineering examination and have 12 years of engineering experience
followed by supervision by a licensed engineer and an indication that the applicant is competent
to practice engineering. The bill also allows engineer-in-training applicants to count successful
passage of the Fundamentals examination and 8 years of engineering experience after high
school in lieu of the degree requirements. The required experience must be “progressive,” which
means the applicant has made a practical use of acquired knowledge, has shown continuous
improvement, growth, and development in the use of that knowledge as revealed in the
complexity and technical detail of the work product or work record. The applicant must




demonstrate that greater individual responsibility for the work product has been continuously
assumed over that period of time.

H 4645 Would prevent septic tank construction or installation within 200 yards of
navigable waterways or coastal wetlands (Bustos — R) In H Ag, NR, and Environmental.
SCWQA Assessment: We have seen similar bills in the past, see H 4685 (2023) (left in H
committee), that have set the distance much farther at 2 miles, which would kill a significant
amount of development in the low country.

. H 4602 Would require a special purpose district that consolidates or removes services to
reduce its current millage rate for property tax purposes by the following fiscal year to
reflect the removal of its responsibility for services (Jones — D) In H Ways and Means. First
applies to tax years after 2025.

H 4576 Would add special purpose districts to the definition of employer in the state
optional retirement program (Bannister — R — Chair of H Ways and Means) In H Ways and
Means.

H 4657 Would require risk management policies for critical infrastructure controlled by Al
systems (Guffey — R) In H Labor and Commerce. Critical infrastructure follows the federal
definition at 42 U.S.C. Section 5195c¢c(e) (“systems and assets, whether physical or virtual, so
vital to the United States that the incapacity or destruction of such systems and assets would
have a debilitating impact on security, national economic security, national public health or
safety, or any combination of those matters”). The policy is to be reasonable and consider
guidance and standards in the latest version of the artificial intelligence risk management
framework from the National Institute of Standards and Technology, the ISO/IEC 4200 artificial
intelligence standard from the International Organization for Standardization, or another
nationally or internationally recognized risk management framework for artificial intelligence
systems.

S 808 Would make it a crime to willfully and knowingly harass/threaten or
assault/endanger a worker restoring critical services during a state of emergency (Rankin
— R and S Judiciary Chair and Alexander — R S Interstate Cooperation Chair) In S Judiciary.
Critical services are defined to include water and sewer services. A guilty conviction for
harassment or threats would result in a misdemeanor with no more than 30 days imprisonment
or a fine of not more than $500. A guilty conviction for assault or endangerment would result in a
felony, and that person must be fined or imprisoned or both in the discretion of the court.

H 4661 Would create a felony charge to enter critical infrastructure facilities without
authorization (Pope — R) Water and wastewater facilities are not listed in the bill’s definition of
“critical infrastructure facility.” Would include electricity, gas, fuel, mining, transportation
facilities, wireless communications, steel and dams. In H Judiciary. A 2023 bill, H 4375 would
have made it a misdemeanor to trespass on public owned water utility, but was left in
committee.

S 689 Would prohibit private, for-profit pipeline companies from using eminent domain
(Massey — R (S Rule Chair)) In S Judiciary.

. U.S. House of Reps. Bill 2940. This bill creates a 30% Investment Tax Credit to incentivize

private-sector investment in water reuse infrastructure. It supports South Carolina’s industrial
growth (Data Centers, EV, Manufacturing) while reducing pressure on public utilities and
protecting local ratepayers.

U.S. House of Reps. Bill 4709, the Buy American Iron and Steel Act, which is pending in the
House Labor, Commerce, and Industry Subcommittee. SCWQA Assessment: The bill appears to
mirror federal BABA requirements and will extend the BABA requirements (which apply to
federal funds) to projects using State general funds or any state funds administered by a public
entity for a public works project (which includes all water and sewer projects). This bill may
increase utility project costs (and cause delays as you strive to procure American made iron and
steel products) for projects using State funding. If utilities disagree with this legislation, they
should contact their House delegation immediately. SCWQA expects a counterpart bill to be




introduced in the Senate. Notably, the bill requires utilities use of American iron and steel, if
available, even if it adds up to 25 percent to the overall project cost. Note, the comparison is
not that the US steel costs 25% more than foreign steel but that using US steel does not
increase the overall project cost by more than 25%. This is really egregious in SCWQA’s view but
it is not sure it will do much about it.

Please see attached the Governor’s FY '27 Executive Budget highlights. Notable is the inclusion
of an additional $1.1 billion for “roads, bridges, and interstates.”






JHALSVIADIN NVOIAVA AUANAH
JONUYAAOD

LHOdNd HALLADAXH

LATI9WNCAVHA 'TVOSIA




UOI[[IF L'T$ INUIAIY MON [B)O],

UOI[ITg SLLTS SULLINJIIUON

UOIIIAl I°6£6$ SULLINIY

LADANT TAILNDAXA L70C-970T AA

HOANHAHA MAN NOI'T'IIA L°TS




€ 901 1°8png 2ANNOSXY :30IN0g

2UDPIPY pun.j
A Auivy 1so840]

dv1s$
ANH AVA ANIVY



INPNISEIJU]




e
el

Bz U0 T°T$ v%

SI)B)S.IIUT PUE ‘SISPLIY ‘Speoy



Ry

iy

il

SADIAHAS
INHNNATHTAOD + HINLIDONULSVIANI dVAA-0T ANV -01

IHNINNVTd HLAAOUYD NOLLVINdOd




PPN XE€],




CC(C I2UI§ SIN7) XeJ, Ul uolfiq SLT°1$

%6°S * %09
INTLOIS
LD XVL HINOINI




uonedINpH




ISBIIAY 'S Ue) JYSIH
AR JOYIBAL, *)°S ISRIIAY

VO pue *)°N uey) oysiy

00S°0S$ AAV'IVS
HAHD VAL ONILLAVLS




A L°8$
JUIPN)S [00YIS AN J ATIAT A0J 9.1

)sepeaag

[P



N 0TS
SINVHD) SHILTTIOVA ALIAVS TOOHDS

"TOOHOS OI'TdN1d ATIAHA NI JHIITAA0 HDANOSHA TOOHDS V

ALAAVS TOOHOS




AL 6°6$
My Ae@-TIng
puedxy

diysaejoyog uoneonpy
puedxy

HIIOHD TOOHDS




sdrysaejoyoas PIV [eIOUEUL]

IOPIOAN PISE-PIIN 9Z33.1, uonIny,

A 1dVAAOAdYV HIdON
AIOATTIOO ONIMVIA




SHOHATIOON SHLLISYAAINA
"TVOINHOHL "J°S ® SHOATIOD

SLOArOYUd TVLIAVD » ADNVNLINIVIN




JUSUUUOIAUF




W

Al 89%

NOILLVAHYHASNOD 2 NOILLVAYASHYUd




N 0TS

WR.IS0.IJ dURISISSY Aanqndg DS

HHTI'THY JALSVSIA




A39yeS dNqng




A SE€$
SAATIAHS
AO0A SINVID INAINAINOA

N L°0TS

SYHOIAAO MAHAN % SASIVI AVd

HIOI'TOd HH.L ONIANNA
o




= ®
T =

I ¥°STS

LIATID XVL AINODNI
AAANOLSTA LSUTA 000°CS




SIIAIIS [BID0S 2 [[EdH




TAT 7/ °CcCOQ

HITVAH SHLLI'TTIAVSIA

ANV HI'TVHH
d'IIHD ¥ 'TYNIJALVIA TVIOIAVHAY

4 T
! @ i.\‘

TAISNAHTIIINOD dIVOIdIN

HAVOHLTVHH




A0S°IS IOWIIAOS

L0267 BUl[oIE) {Inog ‘eiquin|o)
393.)S SIBAIID) OOTT

ISNOYI)E)S BUI[0IR)) INOS

I0UIIA0L) 3] JO IO




GM Monthly Report




HiltonHead

PSD

oiisiaRe/
<

To: Hilton Head PSD Commission
From: Pete Nardi, General Manager
Re: PSD Updates

January 20, 2026
Dear Commissioners, please see below the following updates:

e We are experiencing current demand of approximately 6 million gallons a day (mgd), which includes
Aquifer Storage & Recovery (ASR) recharge of 2 mgd.
e S.C. Infrastructure Investment Program (SCIIP) Projects Update:
o RO Plant Expansion:
* [|nstrumentation and controls work is ongoing.
= Current RO Plant Expansion Project Finish Date: Nov. 2, 2026.
o RO Well #4:
= Reaming of 28” borehole substantially complete. Borehole expansion is imminent.
= Current RO Well #4 Finish Date: October 16, 2026.
o ASR Well #2:
= Upper casing of ASR #2 has been set.
»  Work has begun at new site for Middle Floridan Aquifer monitoring well.
= Current ASR #2 Finish Date: Dec. 9, 2027.
o Leg O’Mutton Booster Pump Station:
"  Project is complete and station is active.
e Purchased Water Pipeline Relocation:

o S.C.DOT provided a project update at the Jan. 8 meeting of the Hilton Head Island Rotary Club.
Commissioner and Rotary member Michael Marks, and Pete Nardi has his guest, attended.
Current plan is to complete design in 2027 and start construction in 2028. Scaled back plan does
not necessitate new bores of the PSD’s wholesale water pipeline, but there will be utility
relocations. See attached presentation.

e HHI Chamber Environmental Affairs Committee:

o We are helping lead a variety of initiatives through the Chamber of Commerce’s Environmental
Affairs Committee. We helped create a “Sustainable Solutions” webpage:
https://www.hiltonheadchamber.org/research-resources/sustainable-solutions, as well as the
attached pdfs on saving water and overall efficiencies for businesses. Recently, we helped
coordinate the committee’s first on-site efficiency audit, at the Sonesta Resort. See attached
presentation.

e BJWSA Partners Breakfast

o Commissioners Frank Turano and Michael Marks, and Pete Nardi, attended the BJWSA Partners
Breakfast this month. The event included presentations by BJWSA consultants and staff
outlining their master planning efforts. Of note, their utility is planning for less than 15 million




gallons a day (mgd) needed in new water capacity over the next 20 years, and about 20 mgd
needed in new wastewater treatment capacity.
e WaterSense Year-End Report
o Please see attached our U.S. EPA WaterSense 2025 recap report, which provides metrics on our
education and outreach related to WaterSense programs. The report is compiled by Sarah
Hickman and Heather Bragg.
e Herbert Miller Memorial Service
o Pete Nardi and John Stewart were invited and gave remembrance remarks at the memorial
service this month at St. James Baptist Church for retired PSD Field Service Technician Herbert
Miller, who passed away in late-December. The flags at Oak Park Drive were lowered that day
in honor and memory of Herbert.

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.

All my best,

D@L

Pete Nardi
General Manager
Hilton Head PSD



ISBPUD WBIBOI4 ALLUNODOMOT
3d ‘UUIM BioiD

11vddn 10dDs










P

1705 ‘sieah saiy) Hmma 9U} Ul 8injonJjseljul Jo4

spung Alquiassy jeseusg swii-suo w INOOGS

, | - "uonoe pjog s.A|quessy [elouan) ay) 80uIS

Spun4 |itg speoy LL02Z ul m —\ mw

—c g 1-9.4n3oNa3seajuj Jo |
b s e ﬁﬁ%%%Eo..m 9y} Bbuizijeay |

o




s o o

o)els ayy
ul ajeysiayul
K1ana Ajgeau uo
Aemispun si yIopp

jusuysaAul
[eUOIppE 10} BaJe ue
pue snooj Jofew e aq 0}

L 1sed ayj ui panedals
Bulaq waysAs Aemybiy
ajeys 3sabie| ,p ayj Jo
yunoj-auo Buiyoeoiddy

sayseld Ainfuj snousg

pue |ejeq ul uononpal
%02Z B Uaas aAey

| sjoafoad pajejdwos ay

SILVLISHILNI SHO0(tE

A




(N T o |
ONINNV1d NOIS3a

ZO_._.U:g.!.wZOU_ NI dil31dWQo>D

NOILVZINYIAOW 3J1VISYILINI

ssaiboid §
9jej}siajuj f




ADOT0ONHI3L SOIHdVY490IN3a
ONIODONYHI e ONISNVHD

Buibiswig




ALmgo yyny RIS S Gan0938 naLsas
ayNvadn | o AMSHEIN s ININNILNO]




§§¢§.Q§§a§

-mhzm_smSomn__z_ d0dI440) -

7| —

AR

e WY
NGt S

-

) INJNFIV 1434 3Haldg




0asS /€ Buyes .
/; uoyouwop JUBWISSOSSY [ zBuyesw . i | Bugsew
: Jland | [DJUSWUOIIAUT f uolDuLIOU| : (| uoypwioy :
\\\  wubiseg paiodalyd v Dllgnd _ Jlland

VN pesiney

9202 WO S70C Bm® 220z R@} 1200 z ,

abpug
punoqjspl

HO A2 o>onm:< 1oy Ajuond
juswaop|day @n_m_ﬂ%amn_x : Um%cm%%%umm ) SOAIIDUIB}|Y SD pajijusp|

sbpug yesain
ADMODW
puUNOQg}soJ

padojarsq padojarseg |

-‘5535&1 30aIH8

%
o
oea.a &

ogl

INITIWIL mqu SN




B e i 10a9s Aq pspung I4
P ..m.ﬁveww 2t f =
MOU |OD M JI ,a
Juswsop|dal Jo)
suljswl} [ouIblO

Aunog jojneag Aq papung
opliiog g/e SN |
GR) - . e Y
VWY 2 e
IESISIVURVIe)P)

pueys] peay uoyiH
| = -
=11

.

§821n0g bulpun4 19sfo.d spuswanoiduif 1
f K,,,.. § :

@ma _. C_ ._.__Dm - T : l A.h_‘.;m_n_w_ ud , - _
£10z Ul Ajuoud  — P ~ 4 ey e
a5 i > Bryay 3P ! , .
Q O._. m 3 |—|O D U m D ' ; \ S A R 4 _ ,w _m_._o_wmz puejs| Asujoulg B s s
so poyyuop| &&= 8 AT

30049 X33O AVIOVW ANNO9ISV3




-EuZwusb! WGQED~
Zal
74 N

=

S.E.ﬁs

ogl

£ 92UIs pabupyd s Joym
Buyssw uoypwiou| dlqnd zzZ0Z

gz, ey, ¢ fwm—y v vo 3ley ¥ fogey

-mhzmsmgmmz_ zon_zzau-
\— m =




EEEEEEEEEEEEE

—mE-

% Q.E- m&&

ogl

égﬁkqﬂgoﬂ‘u&ﬁvug

_ 8¥S :§Z0¢C -%- Z0'FS 202 AW 40
ARN Q _ xwmww 20202 ﬁm%ul AR —-N .- uojp9

.. zee$ :0zoz |

:uoypjul [p1susSb padpdino by dALY SJSOD UOKINISUOD uoypiodsunly ‘0zoz @ouiIs

dob
uolbjjul o} snp pPajs|dwod usaq aAby

9y} abplq o} papaau ,
Buipunj [oUolIPPY SSll 0} SnuUlUOoO sjso) salpnjs juspuadspul ¢

&

MON 4V IM FJIHM




§20z 1290120 Jo sy

% . 2 %% syuawanoudw| Jopiiod g/z SN
o%a.mm.bs ,.an%. 1uswade|day abpug punogise3 g/z sn
puaba
peoy s||8M ysiueds 03 8ALQ 281D SSON W0} Al A
8/2 SN Buoje uonsabuod adnpad pue sbpLq ea1) " u.wmu
. Y \\ N
Aexpe) punogises Buisixa 8yl 12 saUSRIIP @,yhu\u,.ﬁu_/ - s %
Jean3onuys ssalppe o1 si 109(oid siy3 jo asodind ay ,,,,,,”/.,.,.,.................._.,..Hn o> B
=== siauLepy| >
) z
puejs| 6oH Buipue
syuswanoaduwi| J10pLLIOD) 8227 SN Sl

%.vn..w v_um_u %s.m
Splepuels ubisap 1ualind %%
}oaw 1ey) saydeosdde Aempeos pue abpliq
mau apinouad 01 pue sPPUBPYSP [BINIINIS S
@jeulwid o} si 1afoud ayy jo asodind ay | o g
)
ab aypn R %
juswde|day abpilig punoqgises 8/2 SN &M _E_zuﬁﬂw_u___n_ 2 tw,....,%
@ %mo 10g15

ésyofoud

asay} jo asodind ay3 si 3ey\ ¢syaafoad asaupy aue asaym

isy29foad syuawanoiduwj ._o_o_._._ou 872 SN 2Y3} pue a:meum_g_wm_

abplig punogqise3 g/2 SN 2Y3 UsaM1aq 9DUIBHIP Y3 S, JeYA



5¢0¢'E¢ 1990150 JO 5y

sjusawanoiduwy

%, & ‘ : . .

7081 # ; y . . iopuio) g/z sn
[ {

[ f { { ¢ S e e
\ ) ! / | \, { / |

, U0 Tty

) | i
- ! 7 - b i . p ! , -

e NS wNn\ R o P SR L =

P S == - *

b 4 = E
e e rv,\.w

Juawsde|day
abpug
punoqjse3 g/z sn

-g_gbsuuaini
e

0\\%“%”%&9
Buipue) S ; S EEY o) mﬂumm.o.—&
1e0q “ar ybieH 3 el IS pue Aexpeyy

Aunwwo) Pue[s] peaH uojji4 sjuawanoiduy SpoDsiaurieiy pue abnyay anppm | PYCE Aexpepy 1ono 130 sabpugq

Asuo3s ayy uo sjuswanoaduil uenysepad /puejs| boH o3 pueys| >m5_u.:_n_. sabpLiq punogjsam v::onummw.w:u
3oedwi Jou ssoq duyjel) pue appfoig SRR SRR TIEN] | e panoaduwy 243 30 3uswade|day jo juswade(day

sjuswanosdw pasodouy
10pILI0D

[N U3 10} 3|qejieA. SBW0d3q buipuny Ji a1nny au3 Ul saue| 331y} 03 aduLsal o) [enusjod o
—oaloud s3esedas e se mou premioy Buirow s) jusuisdejdas abpuq punogyses ay] ‘saniuny
pue “Auoud e s si39sfoid syuswarcidw) JopLIod) g/7 SN [IN} aYL

Y1 pue saue| om3 yum sbpug mau ‘s|buts e se paubisap Buiaq s pue
oddo Buipuny alojdxs 03 Buinunuo ae Aunod uojneag pue 10gds
"uoisia 19661q e yo jued auo ysnf s130afosd Juswiade|day abplig punoqises g8/z sn syl

¢s13foad syuswanoadwy sopiiio) g7z SN 9Y3} pue juswade|doy

obplig punoqise3 g/ 7 sn ay3 usamyaq 92Ua4344Ip SY3 SJeyp



5202 '£¢ 4900150 JO sy

abnyay aIpP|IM puels| Aswpuid
osL ay3 pue buipueT jeogq “ir ybieH 5D
9Y3 Yy3oq 03 ssadde apinoad 0} sebpuiq

yroq Japun dooj pjnom peo. ssadde [edo] MaN

puUnoqisapn

mmémzﬁ___o__g
v:m_m;w:v_u:_n_mmmuumo“—wmohnoo_.sw:_u:m &
Buipue jeogq “ir ybieH ")) ssadde o3 dwes maN —~

S RN 194 gy Tb f
W P ie i dgee) ™ R i

- S S
2B Ry ) g B -
| s A SN | s N

punoqjsey
uonoalIp 19y3ls wouly Buipue yeog i ybieH i, 255%
">"D ay3 pue abnyay AIPIIM puejsi Aswpuid sy yzoq , Ep——
0} ssadoe Buipinoud |j13s ajiym suuny 349] Buneulwie s Avmavou azcodous [
‘ssadde Ino-3yBil pue ul-3ybii 0} pajiwi] d1j4esy 822 SN

¢@as noA pynom sabupyys oy ‘padjse nok jo Auew aj1 3snf—Buipuej Jeoq ayy
pue puejs] Aswpduid 03 ssadde anosduil pjnom juswade|dal abpliq punodgises ay |

puejs| Aawpuid 03 ssaxdy buinoaduwuy




S¢0¢ ‘Eg 19903120 JO Sy

Japjnoys  aubjjaApi = WL
iE "y R g
0l ¢ <) s | | |
gt - ! ,1 E b
19p|NOYS SUET [9ABIL  BUET [9ABI  JBP|NOYS
_NN .N _\ .N_\ .O—\

uoneinbiyuo) sue punogqjsey




(N o|qe|jiene
) awodaq Buipuny pjnoys syuswaoiduwi
JOpLII0D 3iN1n YHM oM pjnom juswiade|dsy
obpug punogisesy g/z SN 8y "UOIIPNIISUOD 01
308(oud syuswisnoiduil Jop1LIoD |jelaAo sy} Bullq
pIno> jey: saniuniioddo Buipuny aiojdxs

01 @nuiuod AJuno) Jogneag pue |0gODS

VP PTaalers, s ¢ o oy v by
SINIWIAQHII HOOIHKOD

isyudwanoidwj sopiiio) IETEREGI
8.¢ Sn ynoqe jeyn

wmomz_._mmc_:_mmno:uwumn__u_a:m
sl uonanijsuod ‘jenosdde ya\H4 03 103lgng

>>o_._uumw>>"=u:wEwum_n_w._‘_Oww:__mE_:m:_m_._o
3y} 1939w ued AJuno) 1iojneag pue 10ADS

Jueauw siyj sLop jeyin

5202 J3g0150 J0 sy

2202 131U/
. Buya uononiysuon
pajedidnuy

Zgog buuds
ubisaqg azijeuiy

920¢ Jewwng/buuds
[eroaddy (30)
uoisn|ox3 |ealiobajen

5202 ‘0€ 4290j00
Bunaay
uonewoyu| aIgng

G202 Jewung
. 30 )21 Juswaoe|day

abpug punoqjseg

a[npayds 3d8foid pajredidnuy

sdajs 1xaN pue ajnpayds




(o sn)
ty\_%%

ogl

S|QPIPAD SW029q Puipuny PINOYs sjuswsAoidu
IOPMIOD 2uniN} LjIm IOM plnom juswisopidal obpLq sy

suoido Buipun} Buuoidxs AlUNOD LIojNDag 9 1OADs »@

(doB Buipuny) pjoy uo si josfoid 1oOpILIOD ||N} 8y] —-

‘uoisiA 19661q b Jo Jipd auo snf si josfoid juswson|dal abpuqg siy|

MOYIOWOL ¥O4 AQV3IY
'AVAOL 304 11In¢




.—Zucﬁglmx 39 D.‘n

b=

%
.§o gist

5] SUIUO SMBIA QG| -

.l' PoOAISO3] SJUSUIWIOD A7 | «

w_m segpualip uUosiad-ul §/ | «

ONIIIIW ZO_._.<<<~_O"_Z_ O_._n_.E
:§C0C '0€ ¥390100




ANIWIOV1d3H 3901HE:

[ I

WO juswaon|deyebpugge/ziOdDS MMM

[©] d3i1DINNOD

AVIS

WOD luswedn|dayabpuge/z1OdDS® O Ul

N
v@A




AAIdA FHL XId _

- SINIWIAOUAINI §6-1

"VYNITOYVI HLNOS

J1LVLISUYILNI 4




SljusuisAoidul e,
AL8JDS JO so|iw €0l =

sjuswisAoidwi s6pug gy M

S2UDUS|UIDUI 8AlJUSASId G4 =.0
PUB BUIDDLINSSI JO SO A

Buiuspim Jo sajiw 0¢C a@»n
SjuswisAoidul
m@ccso_m,,c_ 6 fm




(£1 SN) €€ 1x3
o} (pupjebpy) zz X3

(Lz 13) 9¢€ DS o1 872 SN

84T SN O} 19AIY YDUUDADS

SINIWIAOYUJWI ¥OTvYW
AINQ JHL X1



wEmEm>o._aE_ ® ,,(,
abueyoiayu|

yeuw,
‘a"‘-ﬂ e

sobpuq (8 3 § spxa) Sjpjsiajul
eely 1o8lold == Buysixa sabupyoisjul JO sojlw

tosuey o
I anaoar | A oL
-ﬁ .... .,..
., 0

=
4 "IOPLLIOD 8y} UIyiim sebpuq
Pup sabubyoisjul 10} sajdUSIDYSP jpuolpiado
Lo $S3IPPD O} PUD (8/Z SN 4O Yiou isnl) 4
o N cibiceg 1SYIDW 8jiuu AjoowiX0Iddo Of JSAlY YOUUDADS
BUl0IES Sy} I DIBI0SS Oful B|IW SUO WO} G4-] BuojD
Ynog suoipiado pup ‘Apjiqow ‘AjIopdpo aAoidwj

:9soding

 —————— w 82 SN Ol
TR <, JIAIN HYNNVAVYS

i VNITodvd Hinos \ERREEEly
_







llemod unsnr uoneriodsuel) jo Aiejeiosss -

K
0€07, :o_..m_n_Eoo pajpwiisy
mmow EEE:m ©]07 :HDJS UoloNIsSU0D am-

66 oy SIOJSIA pue sjusplsal
10} G6-] UO BALIP 8y} X1} 0} Aep mau e su|bag
19A8 JoeNUOD }sabie| s,10QDS 10 pieme ay |

)
$31vVAdn NOILONYISNOD



——3AI¥Q FHL XId ——
SINIWINOYdINI S6°I
v

NITO¥VYI HLNOS

UOILDNIISUOD
10 90D]s [Xau Joj padn|d Usaq SPY [|OM JSIIDY Alpiodwis] »

lequiada ul Buluado mopuim
uolI0la1 AjlIliN pup Buissaiboid S| BuiggniB puo BULpa|Y)

9bpug JoAlY UPUUDADS 10} JINng Buleq aio sajisal]
JUOM "UOHONIISUOD 80plUg [ID)s Of BUloBUO S| YIoMm doly e

Pa2p|dal Usag 9ADY SODIS 918I0U0D P|IDS -
919|dwoD jsowo sI Bulusyibusis Jop|noys

$31Vadn NOILDNYISNOD




sjuswanoiduj y ) (25
obueyorey) @ (8] sabpliq (Lz 2 g1 spxa) S]bjsiajul

d
pesodold Buysixa sabupyoisjul Jo sajiw

el

A
U &

T "JIOPLIOD ApNYS syl UIylim
sobpuq pup ssbubysiajul Jo} saIouUaldap
[pUoypISdo SsaIppD O PUD ‘|7 JISHDW

SIIW PUD 8 ISHIDW S|y Usamad ‘G4-| Buojp
suolyjpiado pub ‘Apjiqows ‘Ajdondpo 9Ao0idwi|

:9soding

. Awina)
9€€ DS Ol 842 Sn

ealy ApniS mm
oleN oA [l

AaN3O31

JAIYQA FHL XId

SLINIWIAOUdINI S6-I

w VNITOYVYD HLNOS




LE0C lied -2¢0z lied
:uoionsuo pajedionuy

9AIJBUIR)Y
paliajald asinay

uolsioag

ONIddS YILNIM Tivd HINNNS

V 4 Y H,_\u.
* # 0¥ X
92¢0¢ §20¢

JUDWISSASSY
[ejuswWUOIIAUT
aledaud

SOAIJeu.d}|y azAjeuy

Bunasy
uoljeurioju]
dlignd

SaAl}eUId)|Y

aAnEUId)|Y dojana(
paiiajaid
dojanaq SalpN}S [B21UYyd3] Wioiag
ONINdS H¥ILNIM TIvd ¥INNNS
N7 7
\® P

/N

vecoc

31NAIHOS 1D3rodd




Sjuswanoldwj 82 ID sjuswiaAoidwy Jouiw

cbusiiol @ sabpuq (€€ 2 2T sux3) Sjpjsiaul
sl 2 Busixa sabupyoiayul JO sajiw

ealy ApniS mmm %%s X

e oiN Bl & O —- —w —-

N EDER

.C
[ &

6°€E O} [T ISNIDW S| WU} G4-| Buojo
sebupbyoiajul pup sabpuq uo saIoualdyap
[DIN{INIfs pub [puoypIado ssaippb

O} puUL Ayjigow pup Ajopdpo aAoldw|

:9soding

(Z1 sn) €€ LIX3 ol
(ANVI139aN) zZz Lix3

e
)
* g
SO

%
»v\bv
\-‘mﬂﬂ
.

(=4

&.HA (£T SNn) ec3x3 03 (Pueaspiy) zzZ 31x3 L
JAINA IHL X14 — o=

SINIWIAOYINI S6-1

VNITOYVYI HLNOS




=S IM G20z Jswwing
£20z buuds 920z buuds 7 - G20z buuds
Mels ubisaq azijeuly uondo 9azijeui4 suondo azAjeuy
uoljonJsuon

ayedionu ez
pajealdnuy E
b

= i

@/
L2o¢ lred 9202 Jowwns " .
- /202 buuds [EJUSWIUOIIAUT §coc lred 520z Buds

Kepp Jo Jybry azijeuiq Bugesiy oland suiaouo9 Ajnjuapj

JTNA3IHOS LO3royd



—— 3180 IHL X1 ——
SLNININOYUdINI S6-1

(((((((((((((

EOU.@@®>_‘_Q®£._.X_H_..>>>>>>

(@] d31dDINNOD

AVIS

WOD'G49ALUARYIXI4®OIUI

N
v@A




C
) y
d \\
N
¥ [

SR
104oDs £_>> :U\:o.. ul Abjs pup







WATER SAVINGS RESOURCES

Restaurants & Water Efficiency

Follow local irrigation rules for
weekly watering limits and always
with a rain sensor.

Enroll in your water utility’s
online portal for easy water
monitoring and free leak alerts.

Fix leaks promptly - even a tiny hole
can waste thousands of gallons. You
could save up to $1,500 a year on your
water bill by stopping water waste.

Invest in water-saving toilets and
replace toilet flappers periodically. )

©

IW Check out the EPA’s WaterSense Guide for additional resources.

Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authorit Broad Creek Public Service District

or South Island Public Service District.

Hilton Head Public Service District

PRACTICAL TIPS FOR RESTAURANTS/BARS

Commercial Kitchens

STAFF EDUCATION: ———— S

20 DO

Add signage to areas where there is a risk
for water waste to encourage responsible
use.

Educate team on water-saving practices
such as turning off the tap when not in use
and reporting leaks immediately.

Optimize dishwasher use by scraping food
waste into the compost (if restaurant has)
and only run the dishwasher when it is full.

Thaw frozen food overnight in the

refrigerator instead of using running water.

This is not only safer but reduces waste.

A4

&

Upgrade equipment such a dishwashers, ice
machines, and steam cookers to ENERGY STAR
or WaterSense qualified models.

Use touchless faucets or motion sensor taps
in restrooms to prevent water from being left
running.

To prevent a commercial ice machine from
wasting water, ensure the drain is not clogged,
check that the float valve and drain pump are
working correctly, and perform regular cleaning
and maintenance. A clogged drain can cause
the machine to overflow, while a malfunctioning
float valve or pump can lead to constant
drainage or a lack of drainage, causing the bin to
fill with water. Consistent cleaning prevents scale
and buildup that cause these issues.

“\3 For more information visit: Saving Water in Restaurants




— USING OUR RESOURCES ———

Responsibly

& @

Turn off the tap Report leaks Scrape food waste
when not in use immediately into the compost
(if restaurant has)

© ®

Only run the Thaw frozen food overnight
dishwasher when it is full in the refrigerator instead of
using running water

- Hilton Head Island
~ & Bluffton
Chamber of Commerce

Provided to you from the Hilton Head Island & Bluffton Chamber of Commerce Environmental Affairs Committee



HILTON HEAD
ISLAND




GREEN BUSINESS TIPS & BEST PRACTICES
Strengthening Our Community,
Protecting the Environment, Saving Money

What's good for the planet can also be good for
your bottom line. We've prepared practical, cost-
saving tips that reduce environmental impact in
energy, water, recycling and transportation.

By adopting these practices, your business can: —

+ Cut expenses
* Build a strong reputation

« Contribute to a healthier Lowcountry
environment.

s Business
& Recycling

- Start with cardboard if you're new to recycling
and grow upon your success.

- Make sorting easy by placing clearly labeled
bins for paper, plastics, and metals.

+ Share the "why” and “how” of recycling to
encourage participation.

* Encourage reuse. Try reusable water bottles,
cutlery, cups, and bags instead of single-use
plastic items.

-+ Understand the hidden cost of landfilling vs.

recycling.

+ Seek free waste audits to identify cost-saving
opportunities.

* Learn about accepted materials at Beaufort
County Solid Waste & Recycling.

+ Find more resources from South Carolina’s
Smart Business Recycling Program.

Energy
Efficiency

- Switch to LED lighting wherever possible.

LEDs use up to 90% less energy and last up to
25 times longer than traditional incandescent
bulbs.

* Keep up with regular HYAC maintenance to

save up to 15% on annual energy bills.

* Inspect and maintain water heater equipment

to help it run more efficiently.

+ Install smart thermostats to reduce heating

and cooling expenses.

* Try an Energy Star Treasure Hunt to find quick

ways to save energy.

- Explore Palmetto Electric Cooperative's

Commercial Energy Savings Guide.

Water
Efficiency

* Enroll in your water utility’s online portal for

easy water monitoring and free leak alerts.

* Fix leaks promptly - even a tiny hole can waste

thousands of gallons. You could save up to
$1,500 a year on your water bill by stopping
water waste.

+ Follow local irrigation rules for weekly watering

limits and always with a rain sensor.

* Invest in water-saving toilets and replace

toilet flappers periodically.

+ Check out the EPA’s WaterSense Guide for

additional resources.

+ Visit Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority,

Broad Creek Public Service District, Hilton Head

Public Service District, or South Island Public

Service District.

B s B M‘



Sustainable
Transportation Choices

+ Coordinate carpools, vanpools or use ridesharing

to reduce fuel costs and single occupancy vehicle
emissions.

* Subsidize bus passes to save commuting costs and

ease congestion.

+ Encourage employees to commute by

bike/e-bike using 64 miles of public pathways and
provide bike storage facilities.

* Support flexible work arrangements like remote or

staggered schedules to reduce stress and fuel use.

* Replace short trips with virtual meetings when

possible.

* Provide preferred parking (at least 5%) for Green

Vehicles and Carpools of the total parking spaces.

e@ Chamber Spotlight:

Green Business Best Practices

Every quarter we highlight a local business and
their focus on the environment. Click here to
learn more about our current business spotlight.

To learn more about how to apply these tips & best
practices to your business, please call or email our
office and we will get you connected with the Hilton
Head Island & Bluffton Chamber of Commerce
Environmental Affairs Committee.




2@: KA

W Hfmi_. AR

o




"A}SISAIPOIq PUD PUD] 491DM “IID BUIPNIIUl JUSWUOIIAUS
Ipin3DU 9y buiroidwil pup buryoaloud uo buisnooy Ajlipwiid ‘sanssi Jo a6uDJ SpIMm D sasspdWodUd SJIDJ4D [DIUSWUOIIAUT

3|qgissaooe alow sanss|
S11|0031 g S0IN0S3. O] SS820E Siqehielsnsislolliogiol sesseuisng |EIUSWIUOIIAUS JO AJBLIBA B UO 3189Npa
axew djay ‘swuiojre|d jo A1alieA e Buisn |e20| 3e sajiunloddo ssaippy Spoyisll Jaylo pue sbuiesul Yybnoay

Annunoomo BuiAlY] e Jo] Alljigeulelsns Builowodd :oedw| Jno



yoomian puasew suse A unoomoy

LIUEES

Q(J\(JK\U -\ , paysialem
2 A 9y31 Ul Buliojiuow Ajjenb Jaiem passnosip
UOI}BAISSUOD JO 1010841Q PUNOS |[eAOY 110d

[Pwwiy Adunno) *iqg-

seale snooy
puUe 8|04 MaU sy paJeys Jo3oalid §Nd DS

unijiniy wog 1a-

sal|Iqisuodsal
pue 8|0l S|y 01 sa1e(al 1l Se peaH
UOYIH Jo Auolsiy paleys isjuelog YNQ DS

As|peig yuay-
Sassaulsng puejs| 1o} uondo s|gesodsip Ajpualijods ue
918312 0] 1seM aullew sa|2A2-dn oym ysiymeals 00D
eyuispy uoley-

pPeaH Uol|IH uo Bulpuels sjeypn wiads

UM ISISSE 01 1108 Paleulplood ayj Jo 1eq

3IOMIBN |BUUWIEBIN SULIBIA A13UNOIMOT
isny uaineT-

S3119S 1jeads 5zZ0zZ
— uonesnp3 |eyuswuodiAug 3oedw| 1NO




senss| [ojUsiuUclAUS
Ol sUolin|os [aAcU mc_ao_m,>ma,1_@o_*u>o::_

Oo,u_o chou\sg ,
-Uolin(g-posH UoL|iH |0 sinlnd pub [USUIUOIIAUS

syl INogp sBULSHO |oUSIoonPS _o:o:cmE_

= UolDONPT JUSPISSY/POIS/IOHSIA/ISWO)SND |

siseq |enuue Uo UaAIb oq 0] piemy
ueipieno paysijqelss AiMmaN :3oedw| JnO




Lt P s e 1 S oniadn P 353 b
2 131 2 LTI i €1 SRS 7 P ks T

$324n0SAY SBUARS Jalem

el wexs01d [IIIN USPOOMm
RS e——

AT £ Aol MLt st o Ten STy

sd ng usal vultawva kinow
SadMdLId 1598 ® SAIL SSAUSNg =Y S
QV3IH NOLIIH

"91ISgeM Jagquueyd Uo paaiasal
T R—— 39 ueD "gn|D [BlUSWIUOIIAUT AIunoomoT :ABBng ysusng)
$92IN0SAY SS3U|SNG UBID

BulwiuwielBoud Jejiwis 318810 01 S1ay1o aBeinoous
pue suop Bulag poob ay3 o35 :3ybijrods ssauisng usaln

S e i it Ve FOn e DAL
e v il e v s

M 3SNOH-JO->oBg U0 SN204 1$92JN0S3y sBUInes 1a1epp

"8Ul| W010q 3Y31 4o} poob aq os|e ued 1aue|d
341 10} pooB s1eypA s32130RId 1s9d B sdil ssauisng usaln

‘abedgam suoiIN|oS 8|geUIEISNS BY1 YlIM Alljess e awiedaq saoioeld
[BIUSLIUOIIAUS J12y] aA0ld Ul 03 S[003 [BD0] ‘9d WIS Ym sassauisng
|B20| yoeau o1 Ajunlioddo aya ‘wies] D3 pawiio) Ajmau U3 YA

921N0s9Yy auljuQ :30edw| JnO




slapes| ssauisng syl Yum
Pamaina1 si 1By 1UBLISSSSSE |[BULL Ul
saledaid pue syjnsaJ sajidwiod wes |

MBINGI JUBLISSaSSE [BIUSWILIOIIAUS 4O}

weel JUSWISSSSSY |eUuld Jo sease pue ssadoud sy 3senbal Yum Dv3/iequieyd

JUSLUSSSSE [BUSUILOIIAUS SMBIABI PUE SI5pES| SSOUISNG 011N0 sayoeal SsauUIsNg
Ov3 Aq papusuiuiodal V80 404 siapes| juswiiedsp UM S193U Wieal D]

se saBueyd sa¥ew ssauisng UM S1e8W Wes) Dy }sen Umm

uonejuswsajduij SUSIA Juswnedaq 19310 B 199N ssauisng

‘9|geuleisns sjow
.\vvw Buisqg 01 Asuinof J1ay3 uo sispes| sssuisng Loddns 01 WEes) e se %1oMm Dyg dU3 4O SI9QUUSIA :UOISSIIA

S SIUSWISSaSSY |ejuswuolIAug 3oedw| JnO




pJeAdiys 140Say B1SauU0oS

BunssN suiooy

BulnssN 4H

Buliesy BulssulBuz/saininn
919|duwioD — Hpny BuijpAdey
919|dwloD - Bunessin gg4
918|dwioD — Bunasin IND

sda1s IXoN

MAWN ‘@bpines alineT

dsd HH IPJeN 91ad

BuljoAosy zI 1suuag oI
BunsyieiN DIYLNID ‘YUWS Xiusoyd
PesH uol|iH 8pIsINO ‘yni4 uesc
J11108|3 0l18uUl|ed ‘Uain] Asio)H

Wes | 1USWISSOssy



*aw09 01 sieak 104 a1qeureisns Aiddns Ja1em s daay pue Aineaq jeinieu s,pue)s| peaH
uolIH 199104d diay ueo yeis pue sysang “Jayyagol Supyiom Ag “Apjoinb dn ppe suonoe jjews

'sjueld Buiaiem Jo Juawidinba Buisull Se yons ‘asn 131eM J00PIN0 JO NpuiW ag
*81qIssod uaym susul) pue s)amo) asnay
*SpPeo] 1Ins M Aluo Aipune) pue siaysemysip uny
‘Als1eipawii syes) Aue uodal pue s1emoys JaLIoys ayeL
'saysip ulysem Jo yaay Sulysnig ayymsder Jo uin e

:djay ues nok moy

*aWo9 01 suonelauad 1oy Aunwwoo

313U 3U) J0} SS320E J21eM 31qRI|3! AINSUS pue ‘aplim Loddns QUaLWIL0IIAUS BU}
ansasaid sdiay panes uones A1ans ‘walsAs Jayinbe sy uo AiAeay sanas puesi ayy asneoag
'$30IN0sal Ja1eMysal) payill PUe ‘sayoeaq \nJINeaq ‘swalsAsooa a)ifel sy — jeioads
aoe1d siy) axew 1eu sBuiyy A1an sy} s198101d puels| peaH UoYIH Uo Aasim 1ayem Suisn

‘siuend aAlleu BUNOJED YINOS PUB 3JNP]IM JO 90UBpUNgE

21q1paioul Ino pue Aisnpul 108 1no Jo Jusuodwos A3y e s| pue weidoid 1a1em pajohosl
guor-sapedap ‘Buuiasuold e S| siy| “JUsWYSLINOU 1_IIGEY PUB)IOM pUB uonesil asinoa o8
10431 8SN pUB S3SSaUISNQ PUB S3LWIOY N0 LWOJ) 131EM3)}SEM PIJEDI} 31 JO %00 9194031 ap)

*sagelanaq pue s191em pajlioq sweu

-pueiq 2onpo.d o} pasn si ey A3010uyoa) SWIES UL UHM ‘SBIMIOR) JUSLUIESN) Jalem SumjuLp
SISOLUSO 851aAa1 LIe-3U)-J0-3]e]S Ul J3JeMm USINOrIq 1831} 9M I91eM USDIORIq PUB USal) L3oq
UIeIU0D $92IN0S J9)inbe InQ 1951 00GE 033994 05 L wouy SuiSuel sydsp 1e ‘wajshs Iayinbe
puno.giapun sy wolj Jajem Supjuiip sy s388 Auewnd pue)si ay] “swalsAs uonnguisip

PUE JUSLLIEAI) JO1EM SUDULIP PUE S30IN0SaI JO1EM olweuAp Jo aoe\d e si pue)s| peaH uoniH

pueis| pesH uoliH uo diyspiemals 1a1ep

dSd HH ‘IpJdeN 218d Ag 'sse20.4d 1UsuJssasse
ybnoiyl pepinoid a9 01 uoileonps Jo sjduiexy




9|dwex3 - 1s1¥29YD

MDINIDIU| g9

ISDION
£901008.d GOUSUGIUIBL DATUSAGY] [
pRaudWnacp PpowIcild O
sacuenddo Fale-HYIS AOHINT O

juswdinb3z 3 sasuenddy ‘gL

1sa1ey

uoNONPEL MNSEAL YI4 FouUdNE 86218 Uomiod O

81N011831820] J010UCSESS []

Jui2unos DIEUIRISAS SI90lDI NUSH [
AMBINSY NUJW "ZL

15910N

S10RN0 850408 IUMSIEU0D Suidsssel O
Apigoulsisng uo g3son3 Funeanpa aBoufiis O
QIS SIDPUILIR SHumes [EIUOWLAINT [

Suidessa)y jeuatuuonaug 3 a38eudig L L

I53I0N

S04 18 ndwosd nygealieys Jo|sIUCLUILOIALT [
swesdoid dn-puncl 10 suoneuop sueddns wmeks Jopusp O

(SOd)=1esjoaulod gL

15310N

s1oun den poad (- sA8s poed [ - sdnd uonied [ - sy0ns4as O - sdng O - sy swe a0 -
supdeN [J- 2ays1Q 0 - sMeag O - Usnng O - :ssaneweyje ajou pue Lidde eyiney2ays

Aojuanu] saqesodsiq s

IS3ON
21sem pody o) saunpeocsd HOgGLERID O
Pooj S290Xa jo UoRauoq [
wesdosd vojssompac Bupsodwey [
ooe)d utBunioea disEmpooy O
juawageuey,) 33Se)), POO4 g

:5930N
Bujainos uo msanB Jojuonsanpl O
dujoanos Uo sMBIDCSSE o) UCNEONPT [
dulasnosjeyoojeiesc] O
eaonoeid Burainos pooy |BaC] O
(PRLLIYUDT) Spaod S sioferng Aewug

Buroinog pood /.

1S5I0N

yonuu Ado, iyd pouaddns-sopusy, O
sdiyssewied 3yosduoulo Ayunwiwoy O
swoiSaid uoneuop pood [

sdiysisuped g Adosgueyyd g

ss330N

saoi20:d A)jqauisisns uisidxa uba Ys1s [
{ionuue “Futoduo Buipseoqua) Souenboy Suwas] O
#e19 @734 03 popaoad Sues Apiqeumisng O

isoI0N
poyisLL fBa)D pue SiqeiEAS SNy e O
(s3san2| weBosd oyaoq miermeigesney O
())=15] wosBosd opioq Joieraoigesney O
SANQBRIUI LIBT] UDAID 30 SSOUDIEME YEIS [
©201d Ul WETL U9 0ANSY [

Wwes0ld 3110g JAIBAN 'F WL US3IS §

, 1s2I0N
@edioued UBS ABL) AOY UC poIRaNpa F1SING [
Jpuapiisond puo canysod stouol O
S1PULoY 10 BIR 20 *eipudis ‘nun ojqe; ‘anucL cauy paimsdaiu Suifiesso O
s1send o aqisis Jujdoseow Apqouimisng O

UOIBI|UNWILWOY 1S3N5) "B

EdON

SPSAU DAUNCEG) JO £IaWeq WACUY = - 51998 wual-Sue O -
(SYIUCL 7|5 3:0U) STAIIRLU! WID-LICYS = - :SUI0YB A a0

SOAGENIU| 21NN 3 SUBGIUALNY g

JEdCN

5U0D|UE0521 10 "BUOIBOYRITD *SPIRAY []- RUDLIGAQIGLI
9)qeINEBOY (] - pYiwowddwi sweidosy O - :93ep 0} 1] Tt Kay

SIUBWYSIAWO22Y %P MAIIRAQD "L

sloupny
i(s)pamaiaseiul
TUEIA B34S jo B1mg
:ssouisng

1SPP2YD MaInIRIU| Aniqeulelsng a8elansg 3 pood




MAW 'Buiisauibuz Jo 101031 |eqO|D ‘B|pUlH Aeq .
DS ule1sns ‘uopueys aljse -
AK19n02831] + 1BBMI00S [BMN|O ‘OMSRINIA 11BN«

LRt ISR SR 9 SIS ISNJL pUBT AIJUNOOMOT US)2BYDS 31EY -

2Je Jey] sessaulisng sz|uboosd 01 SNUIRUOD 7§ & 4 KA s \ .
01 Jaguieyd Yiim Jsuied |[IM DT 'SeoJnosal | U™ | Gl P i LOS +X10MA 1B ainleN c.owCr_Om uesns -
[BIUSWIUOIIAUS YlIM SaSSaUISNg SPIACId | B o - - - BuljoAosy zI ‘11auusg axiiN -

dsd HH ‘IpleN @18d -

S11X{|o0 | ssauishg

sino| Ajjjioe pue siaxeads 3sann 9z0z

S|auueyD Jaylo pue sbujssul 923UIWI0D
ybBnoiyi uoneonps spircid 03 eNURUOD -

Alunuoddo
SIY31 Ul pabebus aq 01 s8ssaUISNg MaU ¥83s pue
‘eune) pue eloy SJUBUUSSaSSE [RlUSUIUOIIAUS JO) a1e|duwa) 81ealD) .
[B20| JO SBUiMeIP s,3uUllUR||eg PPO] PaJinIdid

ll..l
W Do |
il

8911 WWI0D ay3 JoJ saijiond oiba1ells
dojansp Jay1in) pUe S8811WIWIOOGNS 1N0 PlINg

'SspInb sai3iARoe
pue sbeubis Allsdoid ‘snusul Jo) sare|duiay
[B3UBWIUOIIAUS YIM SOSSaUISNG SpIACId

DV3 U3 UM

Salll|iqisuodsal pue ss|oJ YsI|geISS 01 SNURUOD «
s9jejdwa] [ejuswUOIIAUT

DV 3y3 104 Bulpjing jo Jeak e aq [IM 9Z0T

92707 | @@Iwwo) sijeyy |eIUSUWIUOIIAUT









g Hilton Head Public Service District (PSD)
Eltontiead Hilton Head Island, South Carolina

>

2025 WaterSense Excellence Award Application
Category: Education and Outreach Activities

1. Education and Outreach Activities

a. WaterSense campaigns

Hilton Head Public Service District (PSD) participates in WaterSense-related campaigns throughout the
year. We started off 2025 by encouraging community members to save water and join us in taking the
“I'm for Water Pledge”®. Throughout “Fix a Leak Week”, we shared facts on leaks, helpful tips for
homeowners to identify and fix leaks, and a link to the WaterSense Fix a Leak website?. In the spring, we
participated in the “Sprinkler Spruce Up” campaign. We shared WaterSense tips related to sprinkler
inspection, repair, proper use, and a link to WaterSense irrigation controllers®. As the summer
approached, we participated in the “Jump Into Pool Water Efficiency” campaign which included a link to
the WaterSense Pool Guide and information on pool covers®. Throughout the year, we promoted
WaterSense labeled products on social media and in our Liquid E-newsletter. We closed out 2025 by
promoting holiday savings and encouraging customers to shop for products with the WaterSense label®.

b. Water-efficient events or campaigns

The PSD also partners with Clemson University Extension Service to provide customer education about
responsible lawn care and landscaping in the Lowcountry of South Carolina. We provide information
about this partnership to community members through social media, newsletters, and our website
(https://hhpsd.com/about-our-water/water-conservation/). Topics shared through these outlets
include watershed-friendly landscapes, preservation of native plant communities, and information on
horticulture, landscaping, agriculture, natural resources, and water resources.

c. WaterSense education activities

The PSD is very active on our social media platforms which include Facebook, Instagram and X. We
routinely share important messages for customers, local events, information on our water services, and
WaterSense related outreach activities. In 2025, our number of followers increased on Facebook and
Instagram. Our estimated social media reach is:

- Facebook: 659 followers

- Instagram: 723 followers

- X: 203 followers.
We helped spread the WaterSense message by sharing over thirty (30) WaterSense themed messages

through these outlets in 2025. Our social media posts received a total of 345 interactions (likes,
comments, or shares) during the calendar year. The humber of impressions (views) was 25,447, an
increase of 75% from the previous year®. Water conservation is one of our biggest focus areas and our



Hilton Head Public Service District (PSD)

g e Hilton Head Island, South Carolina

sgshmler?
>

Partnership with WaterSense allows us to educate consumers about water efficiency and inspire them
to adopt water-efficient behaviors. WaterSense water-efficiency materials that we have shared on
social media include the Water Savings Checklist and Tackle Water Waste Campaign’. Throughout the
year, we promote the WaterSense Label for products and homes via our website, social media, and
customer newsletters. We routinely promote WaterSense labeled for homes and products including
irrigation controllers, spray sprinkler bodies, toilets, shower heads, and faucets®.

d. WaterSense-related media activities

The PSD has increased public awareness of the WaterSense program and water efficiency through our
website, monthly newsletters, quarterly newsletters, and social media outlets. Our website traffic
averaged 2,827 user visits each month and over 43,600 site visits for the year®. Our homepage
(https://hhpsd.com/) includes the EPA WaterSense logo which links to the EPA WaterSense website.
The website also features a “Conservation” section on the main page, which links to information on our
recycled water program, water efficiency and other helpful resources. In the latter sections, we
promote the WaterSense program and encourage users to visit the site to learn more about water
conservation and water-efficient products. Our monthly newsletter, Liquid E-newsletter, is available
online (https://hhpsd.com/newsletters/) and has 7,680 accounts that are subscribed digitally. The
average e-mail open rate is 48%'°. We also create a quarterly newsletter which is paper mailed to
10,739 accounts.

e. WaterSense-created materials

The PSD uses WaterSense-created materials throughout the year to promote the program on social
media and in our customer newsletters. The WaterSense Partner Marketing Calendar helps us stay on
track by providing monthly themes, WaterSense links and suggested posts to promote WaterSense
labeled products, campaigns, and messaging. We used WaterSense campaign materials*! to promote
Fix a Leak Week and Pool Water Efficiency. We also used hashtags'? from the 2025 Marketing Calendar
including #WorldWaterWeek, #SmartlrrigationMonth, and #WorldWaterDay.



Charts, Graphs and WQR




BAv 43 €2

BAY 43 7 commms

BAY 4T G7 e

Bay Ala €2

02Q ‘AON 100

dag ‘Bny Ainp aunp Rey Judy

yosepy

‘9ed ‘uer

lajemal}sefn

—

AN
/

Bav Ala vz

BAY A|Q T e

N

19)epp \ ~
——_ -

ee——

sSMmo|4 abelany Jajema)sep) pue Jajepn

- O

o O 00 N~ O v I o

cl

asw




Ad #3 €¢

08Q "AON 100 deg ‘Bny An aun fe ld ole : -
Ad 43 v2 ‘ , _ _ | nr | r | N [Hdy | yalep ge4 | uep
Nd 43 62
lajemalsepp
1d Ala ez
Ad Aid vz S — i
— —
d AlQ GT
// VN
— 19}
~7

MOJ Yead Is}eMa)}sep| pue 191

O ® 0 M~ © 1w ¥ O «

cl

asn




(AINIM) | (NO ¥SV/STTdM — HAANS) 092 — 1 | (STTAM ON—JIINIM) 121 - 11 (e8ue) ssouprey
douerdwo)) uy souerdwo)) uy douerdwo)) uy douerdwo) uy ("A11b) (sqgq) syonpoid-£g uorsyuIsiq
VN | VN [ VN | VN [ VN | VN | VN | VN | VN | VN | VN (8a®) yq
90°C 8’1l LT'1 9T'1 YTl A 06’1 €0'C 91°C 6€£T (4 (3a®) sunrory)
SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSvd | SSVd [ed130]0119308g

eLTg| "AON 10 Sny Amng ung KN udy | yorep ‘qoq ‘ue(f
YIUOJN AQ Synsay 1591 Jo 2dK,

3unsa] Aien) Iajep IPIM-TWIISAS

%0001 T6'V8TT |L1TEL [80°891 [1S°961 [9T'E0OT [99°€¥T |0L°0ET |8F'8CT |01°1TT |06 VLY |6TIET |6L° 1] felol
%06 91'T0T (000 [00°0  [L9°I 9% 81 |ISTy |[16°8C [0L9E [0€°6C (000 000 000 A19A009Y YSY
%0¥1 8Evee 1991 |[OLLT |[T¥LT |SEET ([¥8'CE [Ov'EE [8TEE [L¥'IE ([L98C |¥TOT |8T8I S[IPeM VAN
%079 EULIVL |9S°CTIT |C6'LIT |IE€TTT |LTTCL [ST°0TI [0€9IT [8STTI [0€8IT 8V 91T |6S°LOT |9T 611 jueld O
%0°¢1 STIvE 000 [9v'CT |[IT°SP |[8I'6E ([91'Sy |60CH |[T6'SE |€0Ty |[SL'6T |9F°€ STy paseydIng
aLA arLx 0o | AON | O Bny | Amnp | sunp | Le | udy | yorew | -gqod ‘uef
A1ddng jo o4, ;

YIUOIA 1od DA 90In0g

A1ddng 1912 M0

yoday Arren) 191e M A[YIUOIA]
§T-9d

e
PR

asdrpeHuoH




G8 9 A €5°C (paBreyoar) YSv
A 16°1 V4N £1eewe) uorup)
0LCT 0ST A 0€'C V4N jooiqess
681 8L X LET V4N 9SI0H PIIM
061 IL A €v'C VAN uonny O 8o
8€T 29 A SI'C VAN uones a1
A 0T'€ A OY PaYSIUL]
0T - 001 O - 161 A /U (98uer) S[loM VAN 1918 M MBY O
A 961 (A1ddns) vsmrg
(mdd) (mdd) (N/X) (dSuey | [enpisay
SSQuUpJaeH |[9A9T] JpulIo[yD | diqedadoy uLIo[y) Aiddng
ISBIAY IdeIdAY UIYIIAN IdeIdAY

YIUOJA[ SIY T, 10¥ saguey Ai[en) 19)epp diyads-Addng




SIO)[IJ 93p1Ied PasuRY) - SZ0Z/ST/I1
JIUOJA] STYT, 10J SaJ0N A11en() 10Je A\ I9U10)

S91 [Bl0L

K Sy suonoadsu] 29 sanssI Jomog

K VL SNOSUB[[IOSTIA

A Z IoJ0D/1se] /I0PO

K ¥ 93eInQ 1978 M\

£ 61 Aes]/Ae21q dsd

K €1 Jea]/Aea1q Jowolsn))

K Q 2INSSaIJ MO
SJUSWWO)) {PRAJOSY sormbuy yo JequnpN Armbug yo od£ .

saLnbuy rowolsn)




